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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
BENCH, AT MUMBAI

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 113 OF 2018

In the matter of Companies Act, 2013

And

In the matter of Application under Sections 230 to 232 and other 
relevant provisions  of the Companies Act, 2013;

And

In the matter of Tata Communications Limited [CIN: 
L64200MH1986PLC039266], a company incorporated under 
the Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office at VSB, 
Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra. 

And

In the matter of the Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction 
among Tata Communications Limited and Hemisphere Properties 
India Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors.

Tata Communications Limited
(CIN: L64200MH1986PLC039266), a listed company incorporated 
under the Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office 
at VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, 
Maharashtra …Applicant Company/ Transferor Company

FORM NO. CAA. 2 
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and rules 6 and 7] 
Company Scheme Application No. 113 of 2018 

Tata Communications Limited … Applicant Company/Transferor Company

NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED CONVENED AS 
PER THE DIRECTIONS OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH

NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 110 AND SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE 
COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 AND REGULATION 44 OF 
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015, INCLUDING ANY STATUTORY MODIFICATION(S) OR RE-ENACTMENT(S) THEREOF FROM TIME 
TO TIME

To, 
The Equity Shareholders of Tata Communications Limited

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated March 26, 2018 (the “Order”), the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law 
Tribunal (“NCLT”)  has directed a meeting of the equity shareholders of Tata Communications Limited (“Applicant Company”) 
to be held for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the arrangement proposed 
to be made among the Applicant Company and Hemisphere Properties India Limited (“HPIL”) and their respective shareholders 
and creditors, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (the “Scheme” or “Scheme 
of Arrangement”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of equity shareholders of the 
Applicant Company will be held at the Pama Thadhani Auditorium, Jai Hind College, ‘A’ Road, Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020 
on Thursday, May 10, 2018, at 11:00 a.m. IST (“Tribunal Convened Meeting” or “Meeting”), at which place, date and time, the 
equity shareholders are requested to attend.
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Copies of the said Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement can be obtained free of charge at the Registered Office of the 
Applicant Company and/or at the office of its advocates, Cyril Amarchand Mangaldas, Advocates & Solicitors, 5th Floor, Peninsula 
Chambers, Peninsula Corporate Park, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel– 400013. Persons entitled to attend and vote at the 
Tribunal Convened Meeting, may vote in person or by proxy, provided that all proxies in the prescribed form are deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Applicant Company at VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra not later than 
48 hours before the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting.

Form of proxy can be obtained at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company and/or at the office of its advocates, Cyril 
Amarchand Mangaldas, Advocates & Solicitors, 5th Floor, Peninsula Chambers, Peninsula Corporate Park, Ganpatrao Kadam 
Marg, Lower Parel– 400013.

The NCLT has appointed Ms. Renuka Ramnath, Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company as Chairperson 
for the Meeting, failing her Mr. Vinod Kumar, Managing Director & Group CEO of the Applicant Company and failing him, 
Mr. N. Srinath, Director of the Applicant Company as the alternate Chairperson(s) of the said Tribunal Convened Meeting. The 
above mentioned Scheme, if approved at the Tribunal Convened Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the NCLT.

TAKE NOTICE that the following resolutions are proposed under Section 230(3) of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association 
of the Applicant Company, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the Scheme:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 
force) or Companies Act, 1956, as applicable, the rules, circulars and notifications made thereunder as may be applicable, 
Explanation 5 to section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Circular No. CFD/
DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India read with the observation letters 
issued by BSE Limited dated February 27, 2018 and by National Stock Exchange of India Limited dated February 28, 2018 and 
relevant provisions of other applicable laws, the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Tata 
Communications Limited, and subject to the approval of the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal and such other 
approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory or governmental and other authorities or tribunal, as may be necessary, and 
subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company 
Law Tribunal, or by any regulatory or other authorities or tribunal, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which 
may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of Tata Communications Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term 
shall be deemed to mean and include one or more committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any other person 
authorised by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the proposed arrangement embodied 
in the scheme of arrangement and reconstruction among Tata Communications Limited, a public company having its registered 
office at VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra and Hemisphere Properties India Limited, a public 
company, having its registered office at Room No-409 Sanchar Bhawan, Ashoka Road, New Delhi – 110 001 and their respective 
shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) placed before this meeting and initialled by the Company Secretary for the purpose of 
identification, be and is hereby approved with or without modification(s) and with conditions, if any, which may be required and/
or imposed and/or permitted by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal while sanctioning the Scheme and/or 
by any governmental authority.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution and for removal of any difficulties or doubts, 
the Board, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem 
necessary, expedient, usual or proper, and to settle any questions or difficulties or doubts that may arise, including passing of such 
accounting entries and /or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary to give effect to the above 
resolution, settling of any questions or difficulties arising under the Scheme or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of 
the Scheme or implementation thereof or in any matter whatsoever connected therewith, or to review the position relating to the 
satisfaction of various conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those, and to do all acts, deeds and things as 
may be necessary, desirable or expedient for bringing the Scheme into effect or to carry out such modification(s)/direction(s) as 
may be required and/or imposed and/or permitted by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal while sanctioning 
the Scheme, or by any governmental authorities, or to approve withdrawal (and where applicable, re-filing) of the Scheme at any 
stage for any reason including in case any changes and/or modifications are suggested/required to be made in the Scheme or 
any condition suggested, required or imposed, whether by any shareholder, creditor, Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
the National Company Law Tribunal, and/or any other authority, are in its view not acceptable to Tata Communications Limited, 
and/or if the Scheme cannot be implemented otherwise, and to do all such acts, deeds and things as it may deem necessary and 
desirable in connection therewith and incidental thereto.”
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A copy of the Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3) and Section 102 of the Act, read with Rule 6(3) of the Companies 
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Merger Rules”) along with copy of the Scheme and other 
annexures including Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Postal Ballot Form are enclosed herewith.

Further, please note that in compliance with the Order and provisions of Section 230(4) read with Section 110 of the Act, read 
with Rule 22 and other applicable provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and in accordance 
with Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Paragraph 9 of Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, as amended by Circular No. CFD/DIL3/
CIR/2018/2 dated January 3, 2018, both issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Scheme Circular”), 
the Applicant Company has provided the facility of voting by postal ballot as well as remote e-voting so as to enable the equity 
shareholders to consider and if thought fit, approve the Scheme. Detailed instructions for remote e-voting are set out in the 
accompanying notes.

Accordingly, the Applicant Company shall be providing its shareholders the option to vote on the Scheme by way of: (i) postal 
ballot; (ii) remote e-voting; or (iii) voting at the venue of the Meeting to be held on May 10, 2018.

Dated at this 2nd day of April, 2018 Sd/- 
Renuka Ramnath 

DIN: 00147182 
Chairperson appointed for the Meeting

Registered Office:
Tata Communications Limited
VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra 
CIN: L64200MH1986PLC039266
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Notes:

1.	 ONLY REGISTERED EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE APPLICANT COMPANY MAY ATTEND AND VOTE (EITHER 
IN PERSON OR BY PROXY) AT THE TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING. AN EQUITY SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY(IES) TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXIES NEED NOT BE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER OF THE 
APPLICANT COMPANY.

2.	 Proxy(ies), to be effective shall be in the prescribed form, duly filled, stamped, signed and deposited not less than 48 hours 
before the commencement of the Tribunal Convened Meeting at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company. The form of 
proxy can be obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Applicant Company and/or at the office of its advocates, 
Cyril Amarchand Mangaldas, Advocates & Solicitors, 5th Floor, Peninsula Chambers, Peninsula Corporate Park, Ganpatrao 
Kadam Marg, Lower Parel – 400013.

3.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, a person can act as proxy on behalf of equity shareholders not 
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Applicant Company 
carrying voting rights. An equity shareholder holding more than ten per cent, of the total share capital of the Applicant 
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other 
person or equity shareholder.

4.	 All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

5.	 A minor cannot be appointed as a proxy.

6.	 The proxy of an equity shareholder who is blind or incapable of writing will be accepted if such equity shareholder has 
attached his/her signature or mark thereto in presence of a witness who has signed the proxy form and added his/her 
description and address, provided that all insertions have been made by the witness at the request and in the presence of 
the equity shareholder before the witness attached his/her signature or mark.

7.	 The proxy of an equity shareholder who does not know English may be accepted if it is executed in the manner prescribed in 
note 6, and the witness certifies that it was explained to the equity shareholder in the language known to him/her, and gives 
the equity shareholder’s name in English below the signature.

8.	 Shareholders are requested to hand over the enclosed Attendance Slip, duly signed in accordance with their specimen 
signature(s) registered with their respective Depositories or with the Applicant Company for admission to the meeting hall.

9.	 During the period beginning 24 (twenty-four) hours before the time fixed for commencement of the Meeting and ending with 
the conclusion of the Meeting, an equity shareholder entitled to vote at the Meeting is entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, 
at any time during the business hours of the Applicant Company, provided that not less than 3 (three) days of notice of such 
intention to inspect is given in writing to the Applicant Company.

10.	 In case of joint holders attending the Tribunal Convened Meeting, only such joint holder whose name appears at the top in 
the hierarchy of names, in the register of members of the Applicant Company in respect of such joint holding, shall be entitled 
to vote.

11.	 The authorized representative of a body corporate which is an equity shareholder of the Applicant Company may attend and 
vote at the said Tribunal Convened Meeting provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the board of directors or other 
governing body of the body corporate authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the said Meeting is deposited at 
the registered office of the Applicant Company at least 48 (forty eight) hours before the time fixed for the Meeting. Further, 
the authorized representative and any persons voting by proxy are requested to carry a copy of valid proof of identity at the 
Meeting.

12.	 The quorum of the Tribunal Convened Meeting of the equity shareholders of the Applicant Company shall be 30 (thirty) equity 
shareholders of the Applicant Company, present in person.

13.	 The Notice, together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent to all the equity shareholders, by permitted 
mode, whose names appear in the register of members as on March 27, 2018 (cut-off date).

14.	 All documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement will be available for inspection at the Applicant Company’s 
Registered Office between 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) till the 
date of the Tribunal Convened Meeting.

15.	 In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules of the Act and Regulation 44 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and in accordance with Rule 20 of the Companies 
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(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Applicant Company has provided the facility to its equity shareholders to 
exercise their vote electronically through the electronic voting service facility provided by the National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL).

	 Equity shareholders desiring to exercise their vote by using the e-voting facility are requested to carefully follow the instructions 
in the Notes under the Section ‘Voting through electronic means’ in this Notice.

16.	 A postal ballot form along with self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope is also enclosed. Shareholders voting in postal 
ballot are requested to carefully read the instructions printed in the attached postal ballot form. Shareholders who have 
received the postal ballot notice by e-mail and who wish to vote through postal ballot form, can download the postal ballot 
form from the Applicant Company’s website (www.tatacommunications.com) or seek duplicate postal ballot form from the 
Applicant Company or NSDL. Shareholders shall fill in the requisite details and send the duly completed and signed postal 
ballot form in the enclosed self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope to the Scrutinizer so as to reach the Scrutinizer before 
5:00 p.m. IST on or before Wednesday, May 9, 2018. Any postal ballot form received after the said date and time period shall 
be treated as if the reply from the shareholder has not been received.

17.	 Incomplete, unsigned, improperly or incorrectly tick marked, defaced, torn, mutilated, over-written, wrongly-signed postal 
ballot forms will be rejected. There will be only 1 (one) postal ballot form for every registered folio/client ID irrespective of the 
number of joint holders.

18.	 The postal ballot form should be completed and signed by the shareholder (as per specimen signature registered with the 
Applicant Company). In case, shares are jointly held, this form should be completed and signed by the first named holder 
and, in his/her absence, by the next named holder. Holder(s) of Power of Attorney (“PoA”) on behalf of a shareholder may 
vote on the postal ballot mentioning the registration number of the PoA with the Applicant Company or enclosing a copy of 
the PoA authenticated by a notary. In case of shares held by companies, societies etc., the duly completed postal ballot form 
should be accompanied by a certified copy of the board resolution/authorisation giving the requisite authority to the person 
voting on the postal ballot form.

19.	 The remote e-voting and postal ballot period commences on April 8, 2018 (at 9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on May 9, 2018 
(at 5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, shareholders of the Applicant Company holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date, i.e. March 27, 2018, may cast their vote by remote e-voting or postal ballot. 
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting on May 9, 2018 at 5.00 p.m. IST. Once the vote on the 
resolution is cast by a shareholder, he or she will not be allowed to change it subsequently.

20.	 Equity shareholders can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through remote e-voting or postal ballot form or voting at 
the Tribunal Convened Meeting. If a shareholder has opted for remote e-voting, then he/she should not vote by postal ballot 
form and vice versa. However, in case any shareholder casts his/her vote both via remote e-voting and postal ballot, then 
voting through remote e-voting shall prevail and voting done by postal ballot form shall be treated as invalid, notwithstanding 
whichever is cast first.

21.	 The equity shareholders attending the Tribunal Convened Meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting 
or postal ballot shall be able to exercise their vote at the Tribunal Convened Meeting. Shareholders who have cast their vote 
through remote e-voting or postal ballot prior to the Tribunal Convened Meeting may attend the Tribunal Convened Meeting 
but shall not cast their votes again. However, in case shareholders cast their vote both via remote e-voting or postal ballot 
and voting at the Tribunal Convened Meeting, then voting through remote e-voting or postal ballot shall prevail and voting 
done at the Tribunal Convened Meeting shall be treated as invalid.

22.	 The Notice convening the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting will be published through advertisement in the Free Press 
Journal and Marathi translation thereof in Navshakti indicating the day, date, place and time of the Tribunal Convened Meeting 
and stating that the copies of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement required to be furnished pursuant to Sections 230 to 
232 of the Act and the form of proxy shall be provided free of charge at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company.

23.	 The Tribunal vide its order dated March 26, 2018 has appointed Ms. Preeti Ghiya, Practising Company Secretary (Membership 
No.: 10077; CP: 6157), in her absence Mr. Upendra C. Shukla, Practising Company Secretary (Membership No.: 2727; CP: 
1654) and in his absence, M/s. Martinho Ferrao & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice (Membership No.: 6221; CP: 
5676) as the Scrutinizer for the Tribunal Convened Meeting to scrutinize votes cast either electronically or through postal 
ballot or at the Tribunal Convened Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

24.	 The scrutinizer will submit a consolidated report to the Chairperson of the Tribunal Convened Meeting after scrutinizing 
the voting made by shareholders, including Public Shareholders, of the Applicant Company through postal ballot, remote 
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e-voting and voting at the Meeting. For this purpose, the term “Public” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Rule 2(d) of 
the Securities Contract (Regulations) Rules, 1957 and the term “Public Shareholders” shall be construed accordingly.

25.	 The results, together with scrutinizer’s report, will be announced on or before May 12, 2018 and will be placed on the website 
of the Applicant Company at www.tatacommunications.com and on NSDL’s website at www.evoting.nsdl.com besides being 
communicated to the BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”, and together with BSE, 
“Stock Exchanges”) where the shares of the Applicant Company are listed.

26. 	Voting through Electronic Means

	 The instructions for e-voting are as under:

	 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

	 Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

	 Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

	 Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

	 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

	 In case a shareholder receives an e-mail from NSDL (for shareholders whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Applicant Company/Depositories):

	 i.	 Open the e-mail and also open PDF file namely “TCL e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The 
said PDF file contains your user ID and password / PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is an initial 
password.

	 ii.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

	 iii.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ 
section.

	 iv.	  A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen.

	 	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you 
can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

	 v.	 Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) 	 For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b)	 For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12**************

c) 	 For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the Applicant Company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 
then user ID is 101456001***

	 vi.	  Your password details are given below:

		  a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

		  b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was 
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need enter the ‘initial password’ and the system 
will force you to change your password.
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		  c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

			   i.	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Applicant Company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your  
8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

			   ii.	 If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your postal address.

	 vii.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

		  a.	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

		  b.	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.
com.

		  c.	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN,your name and your registered address.

	 viii.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

	 ix.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

	 x.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

	 Details on Step 2 is given below:

	 How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

		  i.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on 
Active Voting Cycles.

		  ii.	 After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see the “EVEN” of the company in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

		  iii.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

		  iv.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

		  v.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

		  vi.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

		  vii.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

		  viii.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders:

i.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of 
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to preetighiya@hotmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

ii.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

iii.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual 
for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230(3) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6(3) 
OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

1.	 Pursuant to an order dated March 26, 2018, passed by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) in 
the Company Scheme Application No. 113 of 2018 (“Order”), a meeting of the equity shareholders of Tata Communications 
Limited (the “Applicant Company/Transferor Company”) is being convened at the Pama Thadhani Auditorium, Jai Hind 
College, ‘A’ Road, Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020 on Thursday, May 10, 2018 at 11:00 a.m. IST (“Tribunal Convened 
Meeting” or “Meeting”) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification, the 
scheme of arrangement and reconstruction among the Applicant Company, Hemisphere Properties India Limited (“HPIL/ 
Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), and any other applicable provisions of the Act or Companies Act, 1956, as applicable 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) (the “Scheme” or “Scheme 
of Arrangement”). A copy of the Scheme which has been, inter alia, approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors of the Applicant Company at their respective meetings held on December 13, 2017 is enclosed as Annexure 1.

2.	 The Scheme inter alia provides for the following: (i) for the Demerger (as defined in the Scheme) by way of reconstruction 
and splitting up of the Transferor Company by way of transfer of Surplus Land (as defined in the Scheme) of the Transferor 
Company to the Transferee Company and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company to the 
shareholders of the Transferor Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme); (ii) (a) transfer of specified 
equity shares of the Transferee Company issued to Panatone Finvest Limited (“Panatone”), Tata Sons Limited and The 
Tata Power Company Limited (collectively referred to as “Panatone Group Companies”) by virtue of Panatone owning 
25% (twenty five per cent) of the subscribed equity capital of the Transferor Company to the Government of India; and (b) 
transfer of specified equity shares of the Transferee Company issued to the Panatone Group Companies by virtue of them 
owning 20% (twenty per cent) of the subscribed equity capital of the Transferor Company to the public shareholders of the 
Transferor Company (or their legal heirs/successors) whose shares were acquired by Panatone pursuant to the open offer 
made vide a letter of offer dated March 27, 2002 (“Letter of Offer”) (“Eligible VSNL Shareholders”) and various other 
matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the 
Act, other relevant provisions of the Act and Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

3.	 The proposed Scheme was placed before the Audit Committee of the Applicant Company at its meeting held on December 
13, 2017. On the basis of its evaluation and independent judgment and consideration of the valuation report dated December 
13, 2017 submitted by MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants (“Valuation Report”) and the fairness opinion certificate 
dated December 13, 2017 issued by SBI Capital Markets Limited, a SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, the Audit Committee 
approved and recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company.

4.	 The Board of Directors of the Applicant Company, at their meeting held on December 13, 2017, took into account the 
Valuation Report and the independent recommendations of the Audit Committee and on the basis of their independent 
judgment, approved the Scheme.

5.	 In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the Tribunal Convened Meeting shall be 30 (thirty) members. In case the quorum 
as noted above for the Meeting is not present, then the Meeting shall be adjourned to the same day in the next week, and 
thereafter the persons present and voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. Further, in terms of the said Order, 
the NCLT, has appointed Ms. Renuka Ramnath, Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company as the 
Chairperson and failing her, Mr. Vinod Kumar, Managing Director & Group CEO of the Applicant Company and failing him, 
Mr. N. Srinath, Director of the Applicant Company, to be the alternate Chairperson of the Tribunal Convened Meeting.

6.	 In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be considered approved by the equity 
shareholders only if the Scheme is approved by majority of persons representing three-fourth in value of the members or 
class of members, as the case may be, of the Applicant Company, voting in person or by proxy or by remote e-voting or by 
way of postal ballot. Further, in accordance with the SEBI Scheme Circular, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if the votes 
cast by the Public Shareholders in favour of the aforesaid resolution for approval of Scheme are more than the number of 
votes cast by the Public Shareholders against it. For this purpose, the term “Public” shall have the meaning assigned to it 
in Rule 2(d) of the Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 and the term “Public Shareholders” shall be construed 
accordingly. In terms of SEBI Scheme Circular, the Applicant Company has provided the facility of voting by e-voting to its 
Public Shareholders.

7.	 The Applicant Company is filing the Scheme with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra in Form No. GNL-1.
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8.	 Details as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

	 (i)	 Details of the order of the NCLT directing the calling, convening and conducting of the Meeting:

		  Please refer to paragraph no. 1 of this Explanatory Statement for date of the Order and the date, time and venue of the 
Tribunal Convened Meeting.

	 (ii)	 Details of the Applicant Company and Transferee Company

S. 
No.

Particulars Tata Communications Limited 
(Transferor Company / Applicant 
Company)

Hemisphere Properties India 
Limited (Transferee Company)

1. Corporate Identification Number L64200MH1986PLC039266 U70101DL2005GOI132162

2. Permanent Account Number AAACV2808C AABCH5652B

3. Date of Incorporation March 19, 1986 January 17, 2005

4. Type of company Listed Public limited company Public limited company; unlisted 
government company

5. Registered office address and 
e-mail address

VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, 
Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra

E-mail ID: manish.sansi@
tatacommunications.com

Room No-409, Sanchar Bhawan, 
Ashoka Road, New Delhi – 110 
001

E-mail ID: ddgfeb-dot@nic.in

6. Name of the stock exchange(s) 
where securities of 
company(ies) are listed

Equity shares of Applicant Company are 
listed on BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited.

Unsecured non-convertible debentures of 
Applicant Company are listed on National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Not listed on any stock exchange

	 (iii)	 Other Particulars of the Applicant Company as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

		  (a)	 Summary of the main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried on by the 
Applicant Company

			   The Applicant Company is primarily engaged in the business of, among others, provision of international and national 
voice and data transmission services, selling and leasing of bandwidth on undersea cable systems, broadband 
services, and other value-added services comprising tele-presence, managed hosting, mobile global roaming and 
signaling services, transponder lease, television up-linking and other services and owns vast tracts of land originally 
acquired for the purpose of use in telecom business of the Applicant Company and its predecessor.

			   The main objects of the Applicant Company, as stated in the Memorandum of Association, are, inter alia, set out 
hereunder:

		  	 1.	 Pursuant to an agreement to be entered into to take over the entire management, control, operations and 
maintenance of the Overseas Communications Service (OCS) of the Department of Telecommunications, 
Ministry of Communications, Government of India, with all its assets and liabilities including contractual rights 
and obligations on such terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the Government of India from time to 
time.

			   2.	 To plan, establish, develop, provide, operate and maintain all types of international telecommunication net-
works, systems and services including Telephone, Telex, Message Relay, Data transmission, Facsimile, 
Television, Telematics, Value Added Network Services, New Business Services, Audio and Video Services, 
Maritime and Aeronautical Communication Services and other international telecommunications services as 
are in use elsewhere or to be developed in future.

			   3.	 To plan, establish, develop, provide, operate and maintain telecommunications systems and networks within 
India as are found necessary for international telecommunications.
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			   4.	 To provide and maintain international leased telecommunication services.

			   5.	 To design, develop, install, maintain, operate long distance domestic and international basic and value added 
telecommunications, global mobile telecommunications, electronic mail services, globally managed data 
networks, data telecom networks, video conferencing, international gateway networks, satellite networks in 
and outside India by way of Joint Venture partnerships which should be in conformity with overall licensing 
conditions defined from time to time by Government of India.

			   6.	 To raise necessary financial resources for its development needs for telecommunication services/facilities.”

		  (b)	 Details of change of name, registered office and objects of the Applicant Company during the last five years

			   Change of Name: NIL.

		  	 Change of Registered Office: NIL

		  	 Change of objects: NIL

		  (c)	 Details of the capital structure of the Applicant Company including authorised, issued, subscribed and paid 
up share capital

			   The share capital structure of the Applicant Company as on March 31, 2018 is as under:

A. 	 AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR

	 400,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 4,000,000,000

B. 	 ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR

	 285,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 2,850,000,000

C. 	 PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR

	 285,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 2,850,000,000

			   Post Scheme Capital Structure:

			   No shares of the Applicant Company are being issued, transferred or cancelled pursuant to the Scheme. Therefore, 
there is no change in the capital structure pursuant to effectiveness of the Scheme.

		  (d)	 Details of the Promoters and Directors along with their addresses:

			   The details of the promoters of the Applicant Company as on March 31, 2018 are as set forth below:

S . 
No

Name of the Promoter Address

Promoters

1. President of India Director (SU) Deptt. of Telecom, Sanchar Bhawan, 20 Ashoka Road, 
New Delhi – 110 001

2. Panatone Finvest Limited Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody Street, Mumbai – 400 001, Maharashtra

3. Tata Sons Limited Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody Street, Mumbai – 400 001, Maharashtra

4. The Tata Power Company Limited Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody Street, Mumbai – 400 001, Maharashtra

			   The Applicant Company has 7 (seven) directors as on March 31, 2018, mentioned as under. The details of such 
directors are set forth below:
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S. 
No.

Name of Director Designation Address

1. Ms. Renuka Ramnath Chairperson & 
Independent Director

D-4701/2, Floor: 47, Ashok Tower, 63/74, Dr. S. S. Rao 
Marg, Parel, Mumbai 400012

2. Mr. Vinod Kumar Managing Director and 
Group CEO

1 Allamanda Grove, Singapore 269986

3. Mr. N. Srinath Director 201, Domus Josephi Building, Plot No. 160, Master 
Vinayak Rd (Formerly Perry Rd), Bandra West 
Mumbai 400050 

4. Dr. Uday B. Desai Independent Director B - 104, Lakeside, IIT - Mumbai, Mumbai 400076  

5. Mr. Saurabh Kumar 
Tiwari

Director Type D - I /E 701, Central Govt Officers Appartment, 
Bapu Dham, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi 110021 

6. Dr. Gopichand 
Katragadda

Director 4th Floor, Vaswani Gardens, 25 Sobani Road, Cuffe 
Parade, Mumbai 400005 

7. Mr. G. Narendra Nath Director 12-D, Type-6A Block 12, HUDCO Place, New Delhi 
110049 

		  (e)	 The date of the board meeting of the Applicant Company at which the Scheme was approved by the board 
of directors including the name of the directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against 
the resolution and who did not vote or participate on such resolution:

			   Details of the Directors who voted on the resolution passed on December 13, 2017 are as follows:

S. 
No.

Name of Director Voted in favor/against/abstain

1. Ms. Renuka Ramnath Favour

2. Mr. Vinod Kumar Favour

3. Mr. N. Srinath Favour

4. Dr. Uday B. Desai Favour

5. Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari Did not participate or vote – deemed interested

6. Mr. Bharat Vasani Favour

7. Dr. Gopichand Katragadda Favour

8. Mr. G. Narendra Nath Favour

		  (f)	 As on February 28, 2018, the Applicant Company has 9456 unsecured creditors and amount due to such unsecured 
creditors is INR8,085,401,509 (Rupees Eight Hundred and Eight Crores Fifty Four Lakhs One Thousand Five 
Hundred and Nine only).

		  (g)	 None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of 
Applicant Company and their respective Relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder), except 
for Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari have any interests, financial or otherwise in the Scheme, except to the extent of their 
respective shareholding in the Applicant Company.  

			   Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari, being a Director of the Applicant Company, as well as the Chairman and Managing 
Director of the Transferee Company, is deemed to be interested in the Scheme.
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			   The details of the shareholding of directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their respective relatives as on March 
31, 2018  is as follows:

S. 
No

Name Designation No. of shares held in 
the Applicant Company 

No. of shares held in 
Transferee Company 

1. Ms. Renuka Ramnath Chairperson and 
Independent Director

Nil Nil

2. Mr. Vinod Kumar Managing Director & 
Group CEO

Nil Nil

3. Mr. N. Srinath Director Nil Nil

4. Dr. Uday B. Desai Independent Director Nil Nil

5. Mr. Saurabh Kumar 
Tiwari

Director Nil Nil

6. Dr. Gopichand 
Katragadda

Director Nil Nil

7. Mr. G. Narendra Nath Director Nil Nil

8. Mr. Manish Sansi Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer

Nil Nil

9. Ms. Pratibha K. Advani Chief Financial Officer Nil Nil

		  (h)	 Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons:

S. 
No.

Category of 
Stakeholder

Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

1. Shareholders The Applicant Company only has equity shareholders and does not have any 
preference shareholders.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon vesting of the Surplus Land into the 
Transferee Company and in consideration of the Demerger (as defined in the Scheme), 
the Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, 
issue and allot to each member of the Applicant Company whose name is recorded 
in the register of members as a shareholder of the Applicant Company on the Record 
Date (as defined in the Scheme), or his legal heirs, executors or administrators or (in 
case of a corporate entity) its successors, equity shares in the Transferee Company in 
the following manner:

 “1 (one) equity shares in the Transferee Company of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten 
only) each credited as fully paid up for every 1 (one) equity share of face value INR 10 
(Rupees Ten only) each fully paid up held by such member in the Transferor Company 
(the “Share Entitlement Ratio”) as on the Record Date”.

The equity shares issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of this 
Scheme shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the 
Transferee Company.

Thus, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the equity shareholders.

Instead, the equity shareholders will benefit from the unlocking of value of the Surplus 
Land by receiving shares in a company which will be listed (viz., Transferee Company) 
which will own the Surplus Land.
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S. 
No.

Category of 
Stakeholder

Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

2. Promoters (a)	 Promoters except Government of India

	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, such number of shares as are issued 
and allotted to Panatone Group Companies (as defined in the Scheme) by the 
Transferee Company, shall, upon the Transferee Company being listed on the 
recognized stock exchanges: (i) in respect of Panatone owning 25% of the 
subscribed equity capital of Transferor Company, be transferred to the Government 
of India, in order to give effect to the provisions of the SHA and SPA, without any 
further act or deed; and (ii) in respect of Panatone Group Companies owning 20% 
of the subscribed equity capital of the Transferor Company, at no cost to Panatone 
Group Companies, be transferred in a proportionate manner, to Eligible VSNL 
Shareholders (as defined in the Scheme).

	 After such transfers, the Panatone Group Companies and Associated Companies 
(as defined in the Scheme) will be deemed to have fully discharged all their 
obligations under the Prior Documents (as defined in the Scheme) in respect of 
the transfer of shares of the ‘resulting company’ (as defined in the SHA and SPA, 
i.e., separate entity formed for the purpose of demerger of surplus lands by way of 
court approved scheme of arrangement), which is the Transferee Company to the 
Government of India and Eligible VSNL Shareholders respectively.

(b)	 Government of India

	 The Government of India holds 26.12% of the total issued and paid-up share 
capital of the Applicant Company. 

	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such 
number of shares as are issued and allotted to Panatone Group Companies by 
the Transferee Company, in respect of Panatone owning 25% of the subscribed 
equity capital of the Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their allotment to 
Panatone and upon the Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock 
exchanges, be transferred to the Government of India, in order to give effect to the 
provisions of the SPA and SHA, without any further act or deed.

3. Non-Promoter 
Shareholders

Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.

4. Key Managerial 
Personnel and 
Directors

The key managerial personnel of the Applicant Company (“KMPs”) and directors 
shall continue as key managerial personnel and directors respectively of the Applicant 
Company after effectiveness of the Scheme.

KMPs and Directors other than Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:

Such KMPs/directors who are shareholders of the Applicant Company will be allotted 
shares of Transferee Company, like the other shareholders of the Applicant Company. 
Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.

Other than such allotment of shares, the KMPs/directors are not affected pursuant to 
the Scheme.

Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:

Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is a Director of the Applicant Company and is also the 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Transferee Company. Being a KMP of the 
Transferee Company and a director of the Applicant Company, Mr. Saurabh Kumar 
Tiwari is deemed to be interested as per Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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S. 
No.

Category of 
Stakeholder

Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

6. Creditors Pursuant to the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors, either secured or 
unsecured, of the Applicant Company. The liability of the Applicant Company towards 
its creditors shall not undergo any change pursuant to the Scheme.

7. Depositors Not Applicable. The Applicant Company does not have any Depositors.

8. Debenture 
holders

The Applicant Company has issued listed and unlisted non–convertible debentures. 
The Scheme will have no bearing on these debenture holders.

9. Deposit Trustee Not Applicable

10. Debenture trustee NIL

11. Employee The Scheme in no manner whatsoever affects the terms and conditions of employment 
of the employees of the Applicant Company

		  (i)	 Disclosure about effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, key managerial personnel (KMP), 
debenture trustee and other stakeholders:

			   Please refer to point no. (h) above for the effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, KMP, debenture 
trustee and other stakeholders.

	 (iv)	 Other Particulars of HPIL as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

		  a.	 Summary of the main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried on by HPIL 
(Transferee Company)

			   The main objects of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company permit the carrying on the 
business of constructing, acquiring, developing, managing and dealing in properties in any other manner, where 
such properties are in nature of land and /or buildings, anywhere in India and if permitted by legislation, outside 
India as well. The main objects, inter alia, as stated in the Memorandum of Association, are set out hereunder:

		  	 “1.	 To construct, acquire, hold, manage, develop, administer, protect, preserve and to deal in any other manner 
with properties, including sale and purchase thereof, whether such properties are in the nature of land or 
building (semi-constructed or fully constructed) or partially land and partially buildings, anywhere in India and if 
permitted by applicable legislation, outside India as well.

		  	 2.	 To collect and settle revenue, rental, lease charges and such other charges as may be payable by any entity 
against legitimate use of any of such properties by persons, companies, agencies and administrations for the 
services provided and to utilize the same for furtherance of activities of the Company.

			   3.	 To carry on the business of developing, holding, owning, leading or licensing real estate, consultancy in real 
estate and property of all kinds and for this purpose acquiring by purchase, or through lease, license, barter, 
exchange, hire purchase or otherwise, land or other immovable property of any description or tenure or interest 
in immovable property.

			   4.	 To carry out the business of building construction and development of commercial building, industrial shed, 
offices, houses, buildings, apartments, structures, hotels or other allied works of every description on any 
land acquired howsoever by the company, whether on ownership basis or as lessee or licensee and to deal 
with such construction or developed or built premises by letting out, hiring or selling the same by way of 
outright sale, lease, license, usufructuary mortgage or other disposal of whole or part of such construction or 
development or built premises.”

		  b.	 Details of change of name, registered office and objects of the Transferee Company during the last five 
years

			   Change of Name: Nil

			   Change of Registered Office: Nil

			   Change of objects: Nil
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		  c.	 Details of the capital structure of Transferee Company including authorised, issued, subscribed and paid 
up share capital

			   The share capital structure of Transferee Company as on March 31, 2018, is as under :

A. 	 AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
250,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 2,500,000

B.	  ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
	 50,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 500,000

C. 	 PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
	 50,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 500,000

			   Post Scheme Capital Structure:

			   Immediately upon the issuance of shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor 
Company pursuant to Clause 5.1 of the Scheme, the entire share capital of the Transferee Company as existing 
on the Appointed Date shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed. Further, shares will be issued by the 
Transferee Company to the equity shareholders of the Applicant Company in accordance with the Share Entitlement 
Ratio (as defined in paragraph 8(iii)(h)(1)). Lastly, the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company will 
be increased to INR100,000,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into equity share capital of  
INR90,000,000,000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores), comprising of  9,000,000,000 (Nine Hundred Crores) equity 
shares of INR10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference share capital of INR10,000,000,000/- (Rupees One 
Thousand Crores), comprising of 1,000,000,000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of INR10/- (Rupees Ten 
only) each, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, pursuant to the Scheme. There shall be no change in the 
shareholding pattern or control in the Transferee Company between the record date and the listing which may affect 
the status of approvals received from the Stock Exchanges, other than as provided in the Scheme.

		  d.	 Details of the Promoters and Directors along with their addresses

			   As of March 31, 2018, 51.12% of the shareholding of the Transferee Company is held by the Government of India, 
and 48.88% shareholding is held by Panatone Finvest Limited and accordingly, the Transferee Company is a 
‘government company’ as defined under Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently public sector 
undertaking under Section 2(36A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

			   The Transferee Company has 3 (three) directors as on March 31, 2018, mentioned as under. The details of such 
directors are set forth below:

S. 
No.

Name of Director Designation Address

1. Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari Chairman & 
Managing Director

Type D - I /E 701, Central Govt Officers Appartment 
Bapu Dham, Chanakyapuri New Delhi 110021 

2. Mr. Shiba Prasad Mohapatra Director B-11, Type-IVS, S/F Andrews Ganj Extn,  
New Delhi 110049 

3. Mr. CV Manoj Kumar Director C-504 Silicon Tower, Sector 30a, Vashi,  
Navi Mumbai 400705 

		  e.	 The date of the board meeting of HPIL at which the Scheme was approved by the board of directors including 
the name of the directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who 
did not vote or participate on such resolution:
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			   Details of Directors of Transferee Company who voted on the resolution passed on December 13, 2017 are as 
follows:

S.  
No.

Name of Director Voted in favor/against/abstain

1. Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari Did note participate or vote – deemed interested

2. Mr. Shiba Prasad Mohapatra Favour

3. Mr. CV Manoj Kumar Favour

		  f.	 As on December 31, 2017, the Transferee Company has one unsecured creditor to whom dues of INR10,000,000 
(Rupees One Crore only) are owed.

		  g.	 None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and rules formed thereunder) of the 
Transferee Company and their respective Relatives (as defined under the Act and rules formed thereunder) except 
for Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari, have any interests, financial or otherwise in the Scheme, except to the extent of their 
respective shareholding in the Applicant Company.

			   Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is a Director of the Applicant Company and is also the Chairman and Managing Director 
of the Transferee Company. Being a KMP of the Transferee Company and a director of the Applicant Company,  
Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is deemed to be interested as per Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

			   The details of the shareholding of directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their respective relatives as on March 
31, 2018 is as follows:

S. 
No.

Name No. of Shares held in the 
Applicant Company

No. of Shares held in the 
Transferee Company

1. Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari Nil Nil

2. Mr. Shiba Prasad Mohapatra Nil Nil

3. Mr. CV Manoj Kumar Nil Nil

		  h.	 Disclosure about effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, key managerial personnel, 
debenture trustee and other stakeholders:

			   Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons:
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S. 
No.

Category of 
Stakeholder

Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

1. Shareholders As on March 31, 2018, the Transferee Company has only equity shareholders and 
no preference shareholders.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon vesting of the Surplus Land into 
the Transferee Company and in consideration of the Demerger, the Transferee 
Company shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, issue and 
allot to each member of the Transferor Company whose name is recorded in the 
register of members as a shareholder of the Transferor Company on the Record 
Date, or his legal heirs, executors or administrators or (in case of a corporate entity) 
its successors, equity shares in the Transferee Company in the following manner:

 “1 (one) equity shares in the Transferee Company of face value INR 10 (Rupees 
Ten only) each credited as fully paid up for every 1 (one) equity share of face value 
INR 10 (Rupees Ten only) each fully paid up held by such member in the Transferor 
Company (the “Share Entitlement Ratio”) as on the Record Date”.

The equity shares issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of this 
Scheme shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of 
the Transferee Company.

The existing issued and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company shall 
stand cancelled without any further act or deed immediately following the issuance 
of shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Applicant Company 
pursuant to and in accordance with provisions of the Scheme.
Further, the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company will be increased 
to INR100,000,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into equity share 
capital of INR90,000,000,000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores), comprising of 
9,000,000,000 (Nine Hundred Crores) equity shares of INR10/- (Rupees Ten only) 
each and preference share capital of INR10,000,000,000/- (Rupees One Thousand 
Crores), comprising of 1,000,000,000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares 
of INR10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, 
pursuant to the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the shares of Transferee Company are proposed to be 
listed on the stock exchanges.

The Scheme is in the best interests of the shareholders of the Transferee Company.
2. Promoters Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, the existing issued and paid–up share capital 

of the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled without any further act or deed, 
immediately following the issuance of shares by Transferee Company to the 
shareholders of the Transferor Company.

Government of India

The Government of India holds 51.12% of the total issued and paid-up share capital 
of the Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such 
number of shares as are issued and allotted to Panatone Group Companies by the 
Transferee Company, in respect of Panatone owning 25% of the subscribed equity 
capital of the Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their allotment to Panatone 
and upon the Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock exchanges, 
be transferred to the Government of India, in order to give effect to the provisions of 
the SPA and SHA, without any further act or deed.

3. Non-Promoter 
Shareholders

Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.
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S. 
No.

Category of 
Stakeholder

Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

4. Key Managerial 
Personnel (“KMPs”)/
Directors

KMPs/Directors other than Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:
Such KMPs / directors who are shareholders of the Transferor Company will be 
allotted shares of Transferee Company, like the other shareholders of the Transferor 
Company. Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the 
shareholders.
Other than such allotment of shares, the KMPs/directors are not affected pursuant 
to the Scheme.
Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:
Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is a Director of the Applicant Company and is also the 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Transferee Company. Being a KMP of the 
Transferee Company and a director of the Applicant Company, Mr. Saurabh Kumar 
Tiwari is deemed to be interested as per Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Creditors Pursuant to the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors, either secured 
or unsecured, of the Transferee Company. The liability of the Transferee Company 
towards its creditors shall not undergo any change pursuant to the Scheme.

6. Depositors Not Applicable - The Transferee Company does not have any depositors.
7. Debenture Holders Not Applicable
8. Deposit Trustee and 

Debenture Trustee
Not Applicable

9. Employees The Transferee Company does not have any employees.

		  i.	 Disclosure about effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, key managerial personnel (KMP), 
debenture trustee and other stakeholders: 

			   Please refer to point no. (h) above for the effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, key managerial 
personnel (KMP), debenture trustee and other stakeholders.

	 (v)	 Other details regarding the Scheme required as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules
		  (a)	 Relationship between the Applicant Company and Transferee Company:
			�   51.12% of the shareholding of the Transferee Company is held by the Government of India, and 48.88% shareholding 

is held by Panatone Finvest Limited, both of whom are also promoters of Applicant Company.
			   Further, Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is a common director in both the companies. Details of Government of India and 

Panatone’s shareholding in the companies is as set out below:

Entity Name of company Pre-scheme 
shareholding 
(percentage of paid-up 
share capital)*

Post-scheme shareholding 
(percentage of paid-up share 
capital)*

Panatone Group 
Companies
(Panatone Group 
Companies collectively 
means Panatone Finvest 
Limited, Tata Sons and 
The Tata Power Company 
Limited)

Applicant Company 48.87% 48.87%
Transferee Company 48.88% 48.87% (Post Scheme, prior to 

listing of shares of Transferee 
Company) 
3.87% (Post Scheme, Post 
Listing of shares of Transferee 
Company and completion of 
transfers envisaged in Clause 6 
of the Scheme)

Government of India Applicant Company 26.12% 26.12%
Transferee Company 51.12% 26.12% (Post Scheme, prior to 

listing of shares of Transferee 
Company) 
51.12% (Post Scheme, Post 
Listing of shares of Transferee 
Company and completion of 
transfers envisaged in Clause 6 
of the Scheme)

			   *Calculated basis the shareholding of Applicant Company and Transferee Company as on March 31, 2018.
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			   (b)	 Appointed Date, Effective Date, Record Date and Share Entitlement Ratio:

			   	 Appointed Date: The appointed date for the Scheme is March 30, 2018.

	 	 	 	 Effective Date: The effective date means the last of the dates on which the conditions and matters referred to 
in Clause 7.12 of the Scheme have been fulfilled or waived.

				    Record Date: The record date means the date to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Applicant 
Company, for the purpose of determining the shareholders of the Transferor Company to whom equity shares 
of the Transferee Company shall be allotted pursuant to the demerger under the Scheme.

				    Consideration for the Demerger – Share Entitlement Ratio:

				    The Scheme provides that upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon vesting of the Surplus Land into the 
Transferee Company and in consideration of the Demerger, the Transferee Company shall, without any further 
application, act, instrument or deed, issue and allot to each member of the Transferor Company whose name 
is recorded in the register of members as a shareholder of the Transferor Company on the Record Date, or his 
legal heirs, executors or administrators or (in case of a corporate entity) its successors, equity shares in the 
Transferee Company as per the Share Entitlement Ratio (as defined in paragraph 8(iii)(h)(1) above).

			   (c)	 Summary of the Valuation Report

				    The  valuation report dated December 13, 2017 has been issued by MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
(appointed by Applicant Company) describing inter alia the methodology adopted in arriving at the share 
entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of Surplus Land of the Applicant Company into the Transferee 
Company (“Valuation Report”). 

				    The valuer, for arriving at the share entitlement ratio has relied on the proposed capital structure of the 
Transferee Company upon the Scheme becoming effective. Based on this information, the valuer noted 
that upon the Scheme becoming effective, the set of shareholders and their shareholding proportion in the 
Transferee Company will be identical to the shareholding of the Applicant Company. 

				    In this regard, the valuer has opined that the beneficial economic interest of the Applicant Company’s 
shareholders in the Transferee Company will remain the same as at the time of demerger (pre – demerger) 
and hence there would be no impact on the economic interest of the shareholders of the Applicant Company 
as a result of the Scheme. Therefore, the share entitlement ratio would not have any impact on the ultimate 
value of the shareholders of the Applicant Company and the Scheme would be value neutral to the Applicant 
Company’s shareholders.

				    A fairness opinion certificate dated December 13, 2017 was issued by SBI Capital Markets Limited, a SEBI 
Registered Merchant Banker, explaining the rationale for its opinion as to the fairness of the share entitlement 
ratio from a financial point of view.

			   (d)	 Detail of capital restructuring

				    Pursuant to the Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue equity shares to the shareholders of the Applicant 
Company on the Record Date, in accordance with the Share Entitlement Ratio (as defined in paragraph 8(iii)
(h)(1) above). Further, the existing issued and paid – up share capital of the Transferee Company as on the 
Appointed Date shall stand cancelled without any further act or deed immediately following the issuance of 
shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Applicant Company pursuant to the Scheme. 
There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern or control in Transferee Company between the Record 
Date and the listing which may affect the status of approvals received from the Stock Exchanges, other than as 
provided in the Scheme. Further, the authorized share capital of the Transferee Company shall be increased 
as provided in Clause 7.1 of the Scheme.

			   (e)	 Detail of debt restructuring:

				    There shall be no debt restructuring of the Applicant Company or the Transferee Company pursuant to the 
Scheme.

			   (f)	 Rationale of the Scheme of Arrangement, and the benefit of the Scheme of Arrangement as perceived 
by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company

				    A.	 The Transferor Company was incorporated on March 19, 1986. The Government of India vide its letter no. 
G-25015/6/86OC dated March 27, 1986 transferred all assets and liabilities of the Overseas Communications 
Service (part of the Department of Telecommunications (“DoT”), Ministry of Communications) as appearing 
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in its balance sheet as at March 31, 1986 to the Transferor Company with effect from April 1, 1986. During 
the year 2007-08, the Transferor Company changed its name from Videsh Sanchar Nigam Limited to Tata 
Communications Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon the change of name was 
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra on January 28, 2008.

				    B.	 In 2002, the Government of India conducted a disinvestment exercise in respect of 25% of its equity 
holding in the Transferor Company wherein the terms of the bid for the disinvestment required the bidders 
to take into account the value of the lands which would remain with the Transferor Company and to exclude 
the value of certain surplus lands of the Transferor Company. Panatone was the successful bidder in this 
disinvestment process. Subsequently, a share purchase agreement dated February 6, 2002 was executed 
between the Government of India and, amongst others, Panatone and the Transferor Company (“SPA”) 
for the sale of equity shares of the Transferor Company to Panatone and a shareholders’ agreement dated 
February 13, 2002 was also executed between the Government of India and, amongst others, Panatone 
(“SHA”). Pursuant thereto, in order to give effect to the terms and conditions of the SPA and SHA which, 
inter alia¸ required such surplus lands to be hived off or demerged into a separate company, it is now 
proposed to reconstruct and split up the Transferor Company by way of transferring the Surplus Land 
of the Transferor Company (which ceased to be a public sector company as a result of the transactions 
contemplated under the SPA and SHA) to the Transferee Company, in lieu of which shareholders of 
Transferor Company as on the Record Date shall be issued equity shares of Transferee Company as set 
out herein, by way of this scheme of arrangement and reconstruction under the provisions of Sections 230 
to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

				    C.	 Further, in accordance with the terms of the said SPA, the SHA and the letter of offer issued by Panatone 
dated March 27, 2002 (“Letter of Offer”), Panatone is required to gift, sell or transfer, as the case may 
be, without further consideration, the shares of the Transferee Company, as allotted to Panatone under 
this scheme of arrangement and reconstruction to: (a) the Government of India, to the extent of 25% of 
the Transferee Company’s issued shares; and (b) to Erstwhile VSNL Shareholders (as defined in the 
Scheme), to the extent their tender was accepted by Panatone, but not exceeding the maximum extent of 
20% of the total issued capital of the Transferee Company.

				    D.	 In furtherance of the aforesaid and to give effect to the terms and conditions of SPA and SHA, the Scheme 
provides for the Demerger (as defined in the Scheme) by way of reconstruction and splitting up of the 
Transferor Company by way of transfer of the Surplus Land of the Transferor Company to the Transferee 
Company and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders 
of the Transferor Company as on the Record Date, followed by transfer of specified equity shares of the 
Transferee Company allotted to Panatone Group Companies and various other matters consequential to 
or otherwise integrally connected with the above.

			   (g)	 The financial position of the Applicant Company will not be adversely affected by the Scheme. The rights and 
interests of the members and the creditors (secured and unsecured) of the Applicant Company will not be 
prejudiced by the Scheme.

			   (h)	 The Applicant Company receives complaints/queries from shareholders/government authorities/stakeholders 
from time to time under the Act. The Applicant Company has duly responded to such complaints/queries. No 
investigation or proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Transferee Company under 
the Act.

			   (i)	 The pre and post Demerger shareholding patterns of the Applicant Company as at September 30, 2017 are 
attached at Annexure 9A.

			   (j)	 Details of availability of the following documents for obtaining extracts from or making or obtaining 
copies

				    The following documents will be available for obtaining extract from or for making or obtaining copies of or for 
inspection by the members and creditors of the Applicant Company at its Registered Office at VSB, Mahatma 
Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra between 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on any working day 
(except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) up to the date of the Meeting:

				    A.	 Certified copy of the order dated March 26, 2018 passed by the Mumbai Bench of the NCLT in Company 
Scheme Application 113 of 2018 directing the Applicant Company to convene the Tribunal Convened  
Meeting;

				    B.	 Papers and proceedings in Company Scheme Application 113 of 2018 before Mumbai Bench of the NCLT.
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				    C.	 Copy of the Scheme;

				    D.	 Copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Applicant Company and the 
Transferee Company;

				    E.	 Copies of the latest audited financial statements of the Applicant Company and Transferee Company 
including consolidated financial statements;

				    F.	 Register of Directors’ Shareholding of the Applicant Company and extract of  Register of Directors’ 
Shareholding of Transferee Company;

				    G.	 Copy of the Valuation Report dated December 13, 2017 issued by MSKA & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants;

				    H.	 Copy of the Fairness Opinion Certificate dated December 13, 2017 issued by SBI Capital Markets Limited, 
a SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, providing its opinion on the fairness of the valuation of the MSKA & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants;

				    I.	 Complaints Report dated January 19, 2018, filed with BSE and NSE by the Applicant Company;

				    J.	 The certificates issued by Statutory Auditors of the Applicant Company to the effect that the accounting 
treatment, if any, proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act;

				    K.	 Copy of the Audit Committee Report dated December 13, 2017 of the Applicant Company;

				    L.	 Observation Letters issued by Stock Exchanges;

				    M.	 Copy of Form No. GNL-1 filed by the Applicant Company with the concerned Registrar of Companies 
along with challan, evidencing filing of the Scheme;

			   (k)	 Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other governmental authorities 
in relation to the Scheme

				    A.	 The equity shares of the Applicant Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and The National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The National Stock Exchange of India Limited was appointed as the 
designated stock exchange by the Applicant Company for the purpose of coordinating with SEBI, pursuant 
to the SEBI Scheme Circular. The Applicant Company has received observation letter regarding the 
Scheme from BSE on February 27, 2018 and from NSE on February 28, 2018. In terms of the observation 
letters, BSE and NSE conveyed their no adverse observations/no objection to the Scheme.The observation 
letters dated February 27, 2018 and February 28, 2018 as received from BSE and NSE are enclosed as 
Annexure 4 and 5 respectively.

				    B.	 As required by the SEBI Scheme Circular the Applicant Company has filed its Complaints Report with 
BSE and NSE on January 19, 2018. The reports filed indicate that the Applicant Company has received 
nil complaints.The complaints report filed by the Applicant Company with BSE and NSE are enclosed as 
Annexure 6A and Annexure 6B respectively.

				    C.	 The Scheme was filed by the Applicant Company with the Mumbai Bench of the NCLT on March 5, 2018 
and the Mumbai Bench of NCLT has given directions to convene a meeting of the equity shareholders of 
the Applicant Company vide an Order dated March 26, 2018.

				    D.	 The Scheme was filed by the Transferee Company with the Central Government on March 28, 2018 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act read with Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification 
G.S.R. 582 (E) dated June 13, 2017 and is subject to requisite approvals being obtained in this regard from 
the Central Government.

				    E.	 The Scheme is subject to approval by majority of shareholders representing three-fourth in value of the 
equity shareholders, of the Applicant Company, voting in person or by proxy or by remote e-voting or by 
postal ballot, in terms of Section 230-232 of the Act.

				    F.	 Further, the Scheme is subject to approval by the requisite majority of the Public Shareholders  of the 
Applicant Company, as set out under SEBI Scheme Circular. For this purpose the term “Public” shall 
have the meaning assigned to it in Rule 2(d) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and the 
term “Public Shareholders” shall be construed accordingly. The SEBI Scheme Circular provides that the 
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Scheme of Arrangement shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favour of 
the proposal are more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it.

				    G.	 All other necessary regulatory and governmental approvals and registrations required pursuant to, in 
connection with or as a consequence of the Scheme

9.	 Salient sections of the Scheme

	 The relevant clauses of the Scheme are as under:

	 “1.1(b)	 “Appointed Date” means the 30 March, 2018;

	 1.1(h) 	 “Demerger” means the reconstruction and splitting up of the Transferor Company into separate companies by way 
of transfer of the Surplus Land of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company in terms of Explanation 5 to 
Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant sections of Income Tax Act, 1961 and in compliance 
with conditions notified in this respect by Central Government and in terms of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies 
Act 2013, to give effect to the conditions mentioned under the SHA and SPA, and the consequent issue of equity 
shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company as set out in this Scheme;

	 1.1(j)	 “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the conditions and matters referred to in Clause 7.12 hereof 
have been fulfilled or waived and references in this Scheme to the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme” or 
“effectiveness of this Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective” shall mean the Effective Date;

	 1.1(p) 	 “Record Date” means the date to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company, for the purpose 
of determining the shareholders of the Transferor Company to whom equity shares of the Transferee Company shall 
be allotted pursuant to the Demerger under this Scheme;

	 1.1(r) 	 “Surplus Land” means the pieces and parcels of land described in Schedule 1 hereunder and shall mean and include 
all the rights, title, interest and/or liabilities, if any, of the Transferor Company in relation thereto. Without prejudice 
and limitation to the generality of the above, the Surplus Land shall mean and include:

		  i.	 all rights, title, interest, covenant, undertakings, liabilities including continuing rights, title and interest in 
connection with the pieces and parcels of land described in Schedule 1, including the balances in the FD 
Account, and DMRC Compensation;

		  ii.	 Demerged Liabilities, including the list of Demerged Liabilities known set out in Schedule 2;

		  iii.	 litigations, claims and disputes pertaining to the Surplus Land, including those set out in Schedule 2; and

		  iv.	 all benefits and obligations under the contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other 
instruments of any nature relating exclusively to the pieces and parcels of land described in Schedule 1;

	 5 	 ISSUE OF NEW SHARES; REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY; MATTERS 
RELATING TO ACCOUNTS ETC.

	 5.1 	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon vesting of the Surplus Land into the Transferee Company and in 
consideration of the Demerger, the Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act, instrument or 
deed, issue and allot to each member of the Transferor Company whose name is recorded in the register of members 
as a shareholder of the Transferor Company on the Record Date, or his legal heirs, executors or administrators 
or (in case of a corporate entity) its successors, equity shares in the Transferee Company in the ratio of 1 (One) 
equity shares in the Transferee Company of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten only) each credited as fully paid up 
for every 1 (One) equity share of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten only) each fully paid up held by such member in 
the Transferor Company (the “Share Entitlement Ratio”) as on the Record Date. The Transferor Company shall 
furnish the Transferee Company with a list of shareholders as on the Record Date from its SEBI-registered registrar 
and share transfer agent. The Transferor Company shall not tamper with, amend, revise, modify, or qualify the list 
so obtained from the registrar and share transfer agent. The Transferor Company shall indemnify and hold the 
Transferee Company harmless for any breach of the immediately preceding sentence.

	 5.2	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the above provisions, the shareholders of Transferor Company 
as on the Record Date, shall receive demat share receipts of credit of new equity shares in their share accounts 
maintained with the depository participants reflecting the equity share capital of the Transferee Company issued 
in accordance with Clause 5.1 above. The Transferee Company shall, if so required, be eligible to issue letters of 
allotment for the equity shares pending issue of receipts for credit to the account of the shareholders with the depository 
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participant under the depository system. It is clarified that members of the Transferor Company who hold their equity 
shares in dematerialized form shall be issued equity shares of the Transferee Company in dematerialized form as 
per the records maintained by the depositary participant as on the Record Date. In the event that the Transferee 
Company has received notice from any shareholder that shares are to be issued in certificate form or if any member 
has not provided the requisite details relating to the account with a depository participant or other confirmations as 
may be required, then the Transferee Company shall issue shares in certificate form to such member. All physical 
share certificates issued pursuant to this clause for the new shares in the Transferee Company shall be sent by the 
Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company at their respective registered addresses as 
appearing in the register of the Transferor Company on the Record Date (or in the case of joint holders to the address 
of that one of the joint holders whose name stands first in such register in respect of such joint holding) and the 
Transferee Company shall not be responsible for any loss in transmission.

	 5.3	 In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any member of the 
Transferor Company, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company shall be empowered in appropriate cases, 
prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in registered holder 
were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor of the shares in the 
Transferor Company and in relation to the shares issued by the Transferee Company after the effectiveness of the 
Scheme. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company shall be empowered to remove such difficulties as may 
arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and registration of new shareholders in the Transferor Company 
on account of difficulties faced in the transaction period.

	 5.4 	 Equity shares to be issued by the Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme in respect of such of the equity 
shares of the Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of Section 126 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or otherwise shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of a court or otherwise, also be kept 
in abeyance by the Transferee Company.

	 5.5 	 The equity shares issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of this Scheme shall rank pari passu in all 
respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee Company.

	 5.6	 Immediately upon the issuance of shares by Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company 
pursuant to Clause 5.1 of this Scheme, the entire share capital of the Transferee Company as existing on the 
Appointed Date shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed. The reduction in the share capital as aforesaid, 
of the Transferee Company shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and Transferee Company shall not be 
required to follow the process under Sections 66 of the Act or any other provisions of applicable law separately.

	 5.7	 Accounting Treatment

		  (a) 	 In the books of the Transferee Company:

			   Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall account for the Scheme and its effects in 
its books of account with effect from the Appointed Date as under:

			   i.	 The Transferee Company shall record the assets and liabilities of the splitting up and reconstruction 
by way of transfer of Surplus Land vested in it in accordance with this Scheme, as per the book values 
attributable to such assets and liabilities.

			   ii.	 The shortfall, if any, on the difference of the aggregate value of the assets and the aggregate value of the 
liabilities of the splitting up and reconstruction by way of transfer of Surplus Land taken over pursuant to 
this Scheme as detailed in Clause 3 shall be recorded as ‘goodwill’ in the books of Transferee Company.

		  (b)	  In the books of the Transferor Company:

			   Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall account for the Scheme and its effects in 
its books of account with effect from the Appointed Date as under:

			   i.	 The accounts representing the assets and liabilities of the splitting up and reconstruction of the Transferor 
Company by way of transfer of Surplus Land shall accordingly stand reduced / closed on splitting up and 
reconstruction to the Transferee Company.

			   ii.	 Any transfer of the assets and liabilities to the Transferee Company shall be adjusted by the Transferor 
Company in its general reserves in the reserves and surplus.
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	 5.8 	 Within 30 days of the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall apply for listing and/or trading of its equity shares 
including those issued in terms of Clause 5.1 above on the Stock Exchanges, in accordance with the applicable 
laws including the SEBI Scheme Circular, the requirements imposed or concessions, if any, and other terms and 
conditions agreed with the respective Stock Exchanges. The equity shares allotted pursuant to this Scheme shall 
remain frozen in the depositories system till relevant directions in relation to listing/trading are given by the relevant 
Stock Exchanges. Except for issuance of shares by Transferee Company and reduction of capital of Transferee 
Company, in each case as envisaged pursuant to this Clause 5, there will be no change in the share capital of the 
Transferee Company till the listing of the equity shares of the Transferee Company on the relevant Stock Exchanges.

	 6 	 TRANSFER OF SHARES OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY BY PANATONE GROUP COMPANIES

	 6.1 	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such number of shares as are issued 
and allotted to Panatone Group Companies by the Transferee Company, pursuant to Clause 5.1 above, in respect of 
Panatone owning 25% of the subscribed equity capital of the Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their allotment 
to Panatone and upon the Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock exchanges, be transferred to 
the Government of India, in order to give effect to the provisions of the SPA and SHA, without any further act or deed. 
Such transfer shall be effected within 30 business days of listing and trading of the shares of the Transferee Company 
by Panatone issuing duly executed delivery instructions to its depository participant.

	 6.2 	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such number of shares as are issued and 
allotted to Panatone Group Companies by the Transferee Company, pursuant to Clause 5.1, in respect of Panatone 
Group Companies owning 20% of the subscribed equity capital of the Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their 
allotment to Panatone Group Companies and upon the Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock 
exchanges, be transferred, in order to give effect to the terms and conditions of the Letter of Offer, without any further 
act or deed and at no cost to Panatone Group Companies, in a proportionate manner, to those public shareholders of 
the Transferor Company (or their legal heirs/successors) whose shares were acquired by Panatone pursuant to the 
open offer made vide the Letter of Offer (“Eligible VSNL Shareholders”) in accordance with the terms set out in this 
Part IV of the Scheme.

	 6.3 	 Within 15 business days of allotment of shares by the Transferee Company to Panatone Group Companies pursuant 
to Clause 5.1 above, the Transferee Company shall dispatch a format of a notice (“Transfer Notice”) to each Eligible 
VSNL Shareholder, at the last registered address of such Eligible VSNL Shareholder available with the Transferor 
Company, which shall contain or require the furnishing of such documents and information as may be necessary to 
give effect to the transfers contemplated in this Part IV.

	 6.4	 Each Eligible VSNL Shareholder shall be required to submit the duly completed Transfer Notice to the Transferee 
Company on or prior to the expiry of 30 business days from the date of dispatch of the Transfer Notice (“Election 
Period”).

	 6.5	 Panatone Group Companies shall within 60 business days of the later of (i) expiry of the Election Period and (ii) of 
the Transferee Company being listed and quoted for trading on the recognized stock exchanges, consummate the 
transfers to Eligible VSNL Shareholders as contemplated in Clause 6.2 in such manner as may be determined by 
relevant Panatone Group Companies.

	 6.6	 In respect of Eligible VSNL Shareholders who are non-residents, the transfer of Transferee Company shares will be 
subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and/or such other Governmental Authorities as may be required 
under applicable laws. The Transferee Company will apply for the requisite approvals in this regard and the transfers 
contemplated in this Part IV will be subject to and made in compliance with such terms and conditions as may be 
prescribed by the relevant Governmental Authorities.

	 6.7	 Notwithstanding anything contained herein, if Panatone Group Companies determine that the transfer of the shares 
or any part thereof cannot be effected due to applicable laws (including the non-receipt of approvals required, if 
any) or otherwise, Panatone Group Companies may elect, and take all such actions as may be necessary to remit 
consideration in lieu of or in respect of the Eligible VSNL Shareholders’ entitlement in terms of the Letter of Offer, in a 
compliant manner and to ensure that this does not delay the effectiveness or implementation of the Scheme. Panatone 
Group Companies shall enter into such further documents and take such further actions as may be necessary or 
appropriate in this behalf and to enable the actions contemplated herein. For this purpose, the Transferee Company 
shall extend all support and co-operate with Panatone Group Companies and execute any documents as may be 
necessary.
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	 6.8 	 Any shares which are not transferred to the relevant Eligible VSNL Shareholders on or before the tenth anniversary 
of the Effective Date for any reasons whatsoever including but not limited to an inability to locate one or more Eligible 
VSNL Shareholder(s) or non-receipt of requisite approvals or litigation shall, (whether for all such remaining shares 
or any part of them), be sold in such manner as the relevant Panatone Group Companies deem fit and the proceeds 
thereof shall be deposited with the Investor Education and Protection Fund (constituted pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 or the provisions of Section 11 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992).

	 6.9	 Upon Panatone transferring 7,12,50,000 shares of the Transferee Company to the Government of India in accordance 
with Clause 6.1 above as an essential part of this Scheme, each of Panatone and its Associated Companies shall be 
deemed to have fully discharged all their obligations under the Prior Documents in respect of the transfer of shares 
of the ‘resulting company’ (as defined in the SHA and SPA i.e., separate entity formed pursuant to demerger of 
surplus lands by way of court approved scheme of arrangement) to the Government of India, including its obligations 
under article 7.10 (a) (ii) and (c) of the SPA, section 4.7 (a) (ii) and 4.7 (c) of the SHA and paragraphs 1.2(d) and 7 
of the Letter of Offer. Upon Panatone Group Companies transferring 5,70,00,000 shares of the Transferee Company 
in accordance with Clause 6.5 above as an essential part of this Scheme, each of Panatone and its Associated 
Companies shall be deemed to have fully discharged all their obligations under the Prior Documents in respect of the 
transfer of shares of the ‘resulting company’ (as defined in the SHA and SPA i.e., separate entity formed pursuant 
to demerger of surplus lands by way of court approved scheme of arrangement) to the Eligible VSNL Shareholders 
respectively, including its obligations under paragraphs 1.2(d) and 7 of the Letter of Offer.

	 6.10	 Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 6.9 and notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the 
Prior Documents, provided that the transfers set forth in Clauses 6.2 and 6.5 are duly made, none of Panatone and 
its Associated Companies shall have any liability whatsoever if one or more Eligible VSNL Shareholder(s) do not 
receive the shares for any reason whatsoever including (without limitation) on account of non-receipt of the Transfer 
Notice by any Eligible VSNL Shareholder and/or non-receipt of completed Transfer Notice from the Eligible VSNL 
Shareholder(s) and/ or non-receipt of any required approvals.

	 7	 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

	 7.1	 As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the authorised share capital 
of the Transferee Company shall automatically stand increased, without any further act, instrument or deed on the 
part of the Transferee Company, such that upon the effectiveness of the Scheme the authorised share capital of 
the Transferee Company shall be Rs. 100000000000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into equity share 
capital of Rs. 90000000000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores), comprising of 9000000000 (Nine Hundred Crores) 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference share capital of Rs.10000000000/- (Rupees One 
Thousand Crores), comprising of 1000000000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten 
only) each, without any further act or deed. The capital clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee 
Company shall, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and without any further act or deed, be replaced by the 
following clause:

		  MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

		  “The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.100000000000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into 
equity share capital of Rs.90000000000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores) comprising of 9000000000 (Nine Hundred 
Crores) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference share capital of Rs.10000000000/- (Rupees 
One Thousand Crores), comprising of 1000000000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees 
Ten only) each with the rights, privileges and conditions attaching thereto as may be provided by the Articles of 
Association of the Company for the time period.”

		  Further, Article 4 of the Articles of Association of the Transferee Company shall, upon the coming into effect of this 
Scheme and without any further act or deed, be replaced by the following clause:

		  ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

		  “The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.100000000000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into 
equity share capital of Rs.90000000000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores), comprising of 9000000000 (Nine Hundred 
Crores) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference share capital of Rs.10000000000/- (Rupees 
One Thousand Crores), comprising of 1000000000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees 
Ten only) each”
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	 7.2	 It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of Clause 7.1, the consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company 
to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for amendment of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee 
Company and no further resolutions under the applicable provisions of the Act would be required.

	 7.3	 Pursuant to this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall file the requisite forms with the registrar of companies for 
alteration of its authorised share capital and shall bear all costs and expense in relation to its alteration of share 
capital.

	 7.4	 The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall make necessary applications before the NCLT, Mumbai 
and Central Government respectively for sanction of this Scheme under Sections 230 and 232 of the Act and any other 
applicable provisions of law. The Transferee Company shall be responsible for obtaining all registrations, approvals 
and filings, inter alia, for the purpose of listing, as may be necessary, the Transferee Company and/or its securities 
pursuant to, in connection with or as a consequence of the consideration, effectiveness and/or implementation of the 
Scheme, with or from any Governmental Authority or stock exchange, provided that the Transferor Company shall 
extend reasonable cooperation in this regard.

	 7.5	 The stamp duty payable on any order sanctioning this Scheme shall be fully borne by the Transferee Company as 
principal obligor, and shall not be borne in whole or in part by the Transferor Company or Panatone and its Associated 
Companies.

	 7.6	 Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 7.5 above, it is expressly clarified that the Transferee Company shall 
bear (a) stamp duty, if any, for the transfer of the Surplus Land from the Transferor Company to the Transferee 
Company pursuant to this Scheme, (b) costs, if any, in relation to registration, approvals and/or filings in respect of the 
Transferee Company, its securities and/or the Scheme and/or stamp duty in relation to its alteration of share capital, 
pursuant to, in connection with or as a consequence of the consideration, effectiveness and/or implementation of the 
Scheme, with or from any Governmental Authority, stock exchange, holders of any securities issued by or on behalf 
of the Transferor Company or any other person, whether within or outside India, and (c) costs in relation to listing of 
any securities of the Transferee Company, pursuant to, in connection with or as a consequence of the Scheme, on 
any stock exchange whether within or outside India.

	 7.7	 All the costs associated (including any stamp duty payable for the transfer of any shares pursuant to Part IV above 
or Taxes arising in relation thereto) with transfer of shares issued to Panatone Group Companies under this Scheme 
which are to be transferred in accordance with the provisions of Part IV of this Scheme, shall be borne by the 
respective transferees.

	 7.8	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, if any Tax (including any interest, 
penalties and/or associated costs) is at all leviable or can be the subject matter of any demand, the same is an obligation 
transferred to the Transferee Company and shall not be assessed directly or demanded from the Transferor Company 
or from Panatone or its Associated Companies, pursuant to this declaration made to the Scheme and sanctioned 
by the NCLT and Central Government respectively. In the event that any tax (including any interest, penalties and/
or associated costs) is levied or becomes capable of being levied on the Transferor Company or Panatone or its 
Associated Companies as the case may be, the Transferee Company and its assets may be subject to the related 
Tax charge and no assets or properties of the Transferor Company, Panatone or its Associated Companies shall be 
subject to any such Tax charge or claim.

	 7.9	 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme, any payment required to be made by the Transferee 
Company to the Transferor Company and/or Panatone and/or its Associated Companies in discharge of indemnification 
obligations under this Scheme (including under Clause 3.5); and any payment required to be made by the Transferor 
Company to the Transferee Company in discharge of indemnification obligations under this Scheme (including under 
Clause 3.6) shall, in each case, be made free and clear of, and without deduction for or on account of any Taxes, 
charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties, except as may be required under applicable law. If any Taxes, charges, 
fees, costs, expenses or duties are required to be deducted or to be paid, such additional amounts shall be paid 
by the Transferee Company as shall ensure that the Transferor Company and/or Panatone and/or its Associated 
Companies, as the case may be, receive, after deduction by the Transferee Company or payment by Transferor 
Company/Panatone/its Associated Companies of all applicable Taxes, charges, fees, costs, expenses, duties, etc., a 
net amount equal to the full amount which it would have received had such payment not been subject to such Taxes, 
charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties. If any Taxes, charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties are required to be 
deducted or to be paid, such additional amounts shall be paid by the Transferor Company as shall ensure that the 
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Transferee Company, receives, after deduction by the Transferor Company of all applicable Taxes, charges, fees, 
costs, expenses, duties, etc., a net amount equal to the full amount which it would have received had such payment 
not been subject to such Taxes, charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties.

	 7.10	 The Transferor Company (by its Board of Directors) and the Transferee Company (by its Board of Directors), may, 
in their full and absolute discretion, assent to any alteration or modification to this Scheme which either the Boards 
of Directors of the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, as the case may be, deem fit. The Transferor 
Company and the Transferee Company each through its Board of Directors, jointly and as mutually agreed in writing, 
may in their full and absolute discretion, assent to any alteration or modification to which the NCLT, Mumbai or 
Central Government and/or any other Governmental Authority may deem fit to approve or impose and may give such 
directions as they may consider necessary to mutually settle any question or difficulty arising under the Scheme or in 
regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or its implementation hereof or in any matter whatsoever 
connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of this Scheme and 
if necessary, to waive any of those (to the extent permissible under applicable law). Any issue as to whether any 
asset, liability or litigation pertains to the Surplus Land or not shall be decided by the Boards of Directors of the 
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, on the basis of evidence that they may deem relevant for the 
purpose (including the books and records of the Transferor Company). The Transferor Company and the Transferee 
Company each through its Board of Directors may also in their full and absolute discretion, jointly and as mutually 
agreed in writing, withdraw or abandon this Scheme at any stage prior to its becoming effective. Without prejudice 
to the foregoing, in the event that any Governmental Authority or NCLT, Mumbai or Central Government imposes an 
onerous condition or deletes any of the protections or indemnities provided to the Transferor Company or Panatone 
and / or its Associated Companies pursuant to the terms of this Scheme, the Scheme shall be withdrawn or shall 
become null and void, unless the Transferor Company and Transferee Company agree to continue to pursue or 
implement the Scheme.

	 7.11	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the above provisions, the shareholders of the Transferor 
Company as on the Record Date shall receive new share certificates of Transferee Company reflecting the issued 
share capital of the Transferee Company (after excluding the original issued capital), and the Transferee Company 
shall, if so required be eligible to issue letters of allotment for the shares pending issue of share certificates.

	 7.12	 The Scheme is conditional and is subject to –

		  (a)	 the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of various classes of the members and / or 
creditors of each of the Companies, as required under the Act, or dispensation having being from the members 
and/or creditors, and the requisite order of the NCLT, Mumbai (in respect of Transferor Company) and the 
Central Government (in respect of Transferee Company), being obtained in this regard;

		  (b)	 the Scheme being approved by the majority of public shareholders of the Transferor Company (through 
e-voting) as may be required under the SEBI Scheme Circular, i.e., the votes cast by public shareholders in 
favour of the resolution are more than the number of votes cast by public shareholders against it;

		  (c)	 the Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT, Mumbai and the Central Government respectively under the 
provisions of the Act;

		  (d)	 the approval of SEBI in terms of the SEBI Scheme Circulars being obtained upon this Scheme being sanctioned 
by the NCLT, Mumbai and the Central Government respectively;

		  (e)	 the certified copies of the orders referred to in Clause 7.12(c) of this Scheme being filed with the jurisdictional 
Registrar of Companies; and

		  (f)	 all necessary regulatory and governmental approvals and registrations required pursuant to, in connection with 
or as a consequence of the Scheme, being obtained from the relevant Governmental Authorities within and 
outside India (including approvals, if any, required from the Government of India, the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, or any stock exchange).

	 7.13	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company immediately prior to the 
Effective Date shall, without any further act or deed be replaced by the new Board of Directors of the Transferee 
Company constituted in accordance with the Act and majority of which shall be comprised of nominees of the 
President of India.

	 7.14	 In the event of this Scheme failing to take effect by March 31, 2019 or such later date as may be agreed by the 
respective Board of Directors of the Companies, this Scheme shall become null and void and in that case no rights 
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and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter-se by the Companies or their shareholders or creditors 
or employees or any other person.

	 7.15	 The provisions contained in this Scheme are inextricably inter-linked with the other provisions and the Scheme 
constitutes an integral whole. The Scheme would be given effect to only if is approved in its entirety unless specifically 
agreed otherwise by the respective Board of Directors of each Company.

	 7.16	 Subject to Clause 7.10 above, if any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the 
same shall not, subject to the decision of the Companies, affect the validity or implementation of the other parts and/
or provisions of this Scheme.

	 7.17	 Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the accounts of the Transferor Company, as on the Appointed Date shall be 
reconstructed in accordance with the terms of this Scheme.

	 7.18	 Each of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall be entitled to file/revise its income tax returns, TDS 
returns and other statutory returns, if required, and shall have the right to claim refunds, advance tax credits, credit of 
tax under Section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, credit of tax deducted at source, etc., if any, as may be required 
consequent to implementation of this Scheme.

	 7.19	 This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
related notification and other relevant sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If any terms or provisions of this Scheme 
are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent with any of the said provisions at a later date, whether as a result of 
any amendment of law or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reason whatsoever, the aforesaid 
provisions of the Tax laws shall prevail. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company 
shall exercise their discretion to modify the Scheme to the extent determined necessary to comply with the said 
provisions. Such modification will however not affect other parts of the Scheme. If, and to the extent, any tax is levied 
on a party to this Scheme under the Income Tax Act, 1961 in relation to this Scheme then the party, which is liable 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 to pay such tax, alone shall be liable for such tax with no recourse against another 
party.

	 A copy of the proposed Scheme is attached as Annexure 1 to this Notice and Explanatory Statement. The Scheme is not 
prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders and creditors of the Applicant Company.

	 The features set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme, which are subject to details set out in 
the Scheme, the equity shareholders are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme (annexed herewith) to get 
fully acquainted with the provisions thereof and the rationale and objectives of the Scheme.

10.	 Documents required to be circulated for the Tribunal Convened Meeting under Section 232(2) of the Act and SEBI 
Scheme Circular:

	 As required under Section 232(2) of the Act and paragraph 8 of the SEBI Scheme Circular, the following documents are 
being circulated with this notice and the explanatory statement:

	 (i)	 Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction among Tata Communications Limited and Hemisphere Properties India 
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
enclosed as Annexure 1;

	 (ii)	 Valuation Report dated December 13, 2017 issued by MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, enclosed as 
Annexure 2;

	 (iii)	 Fairness Opinion Certificate dated December 13, 2017 issued by SBI Capital Markets Limited, a SEBI Registered 
Merchant Banker, providing its opinion on the fairness of the valuation as recommended by MSKA & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, enclosed as Annexure 3;

	 (iv)	 Observation Letter dated February 27, 2018 issued by BSE Limited to Tata Communications Limited, enclosed as 
Annexure 4;

	 (v)	 Observation Letter dated February 28, 2018 issued by National Stock Exchange of India Limited to Tata 
Communications Limited, enclosed as Annexure 5;

	 (vi)	 Complaints Report dated January 19, 2018 submitted to BSE Limited and Complaints Report dated January 19, 2018 
submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited by Tata Communications Limited, enclosed as Annexure 6A 
and Annexure 6B respectively;
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	 (vii)	 Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Tata Communications Limited pursuant to the provisions of Section 
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, enclosed as Annexure 7;

	 (viii)	 Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Hemisphere Properties India Limited pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, enclosed as Annexure 8;

	 (ix)	 Pre and post Demerger shareholding pattern of Tata Communications Limited and Hemisphere Properties India 
Limited, enclosed as Annexure 9A and Annexure 9B respectively; 

	 (x)	 Supplementary  accounting statement of Tata Communications Limited for the period ending December 31, 2017, 
enclosed as Annexure 10;

	 (xi)	 Supplementary  accounting statement of Hemisphere Properties India Limited for the period ending December 31, 
2017, enclosed as Annexure 11; and

	 (xii)	 Abridged prospectus for Hemisphere Properties India Limited, duly certified by SBI Capital Markets Limited, a SEBI 
registered Merchant Banker, enclosed as Annexure 12.

Dated at this 2nd day of April, 2018
Sd/- 

Renuka Ramnath 
Chairperson

Registered Office 
Tata Communications Limited 
VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 
CIN: L64200MH1986PLC039266
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AND  
RECONSTRUCTION

AMONG

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
As the Transferor Company

AND

HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED 
As the Transferee Company

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

BETWEEN

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED …. TRANSFEROR COMPANY

HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED …. TRANSFEREE COMPANY

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

PART I - GENERAL

WHEREAS

(A)	 Tata Communications Limited (the “Transferor Company” or “TCL”) (formerly known as Videsh Sanchar Nigam Limited) 
is a public limited company duly incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and has its registered office at VSB, 
Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. The Transferor Company was incorporated on March 19, 1986. The 
Government of India vide its letter no. G-25015/6/86OC dated March 27, 1986 transferred all assets and liabilities of the 
Overseas Communications Service (part of the Department of Telecommunications (“DoT”), Ministry of Communications) 
as appearing in its balance sheet as at March 31, 1986 to the Transferor Company with effect from April 1, 1986. During 
the year 2007-08, the Transferor Company changed its name from Videsh Sanchar Nigam Limited to Tata Communications 
Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon the change of name was issued by the Registrar of 
Companies, Maharashtra on January 28, 2008. The equity shares of Transferor Company are listed on the Stock Exchanges 
(as defined hereinafter). The Transferor Company has issued unlisted non-convertible debentures on private placement 
basis.

(B)	 The Transferor Company is primarily engaged in the business of, among others, provision of international and national 
voice and data transmission services, selling and leasing of bandwidth on undersea cable systems, broadband services, 
and other value-added services comprising tele-presence, managed hosting, mobile global roaming and signaling services, 
transponder lease, television up-linking and other services and owns vast tracts of land originally acquired for the purpose 
of use in telecom business of the Transferor Company and its predecessor.

(C)	 Hemisphere Properties India Limited (the “Transferee Company”), is a public limited company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Room No-409 Sanchar Bhawan, Ashoka Road New Delhi – 
110 001. The equity shares of the Transferee Company are presently not listed on any stock exchange. Presently, 51.12% 
of the shareholding of the Transferee Company is held by the Government of India, and 48.88% shareholding is held by 
Panatone Finvest Limited (“Panatone”) and accordingly, the Transferee Company is a ‘government company’ as defined 
under Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently public sector undertaking under Section 2(36A) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. The main objects of the memorandum of association of the Transferee Company permit the carrying 
on the business of constructing, acquiring, developing, managing and dealing in properties in any other manner, where 
such properties are in nature of land and /or buildings, anywhere in India and if permitted by legislation, outside India as 
well.

(D)	 In 2002, the Government of India conducted a disinvestment exercise in respect of 25% of its equity holding in the Transferor 
Company wherein the terms of the bid for the disinvestment required the bidders to take into account the value of the lands 
which would remain with the Transferor Company and to exclude the value of certain surplus lands of the Transferor 
Company. Panatone (as hereinafter defined) was the successful bidder in this disinvestment process. Subsequently, a 
share purchase agreement dated February 6, 2002 was executed between the Government of India and, amongst others, 
Panatone and the Transferor Company (“SPA”) for the sale of equity shares of the Transferor Company to Panatone and 
a shareholders’ agreement dated February 13, 2002 was also executed between the Government of India and, amongst 
others, Panatone (“SHA”). Pursuant thereto, in order to give effect to the terms and conditions of the SPA and SHA 
which, inter alia¸ required such surplus lands to be hived off or demerged into a separate company, it is now proposed to 
reconstruct and split up the Transferor Company by way of transferring the Surplus Land (as defined hereinafter) of the 
Transferor Company (which ceased to be a public sector company as a result of the transactions contemplated under the 
SPA and SHA) to the Transferee Company, in lieu of which shareholders of Transferor Company as on the Record Date 

Annexure - 1
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(as defined hereinafter) shall be issued equity shares of Transferee Company as set out herein, by way of this scheme of 
arrangement and reconstruction under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Explanation 
5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Further, in accordance with the terms of the said SPA, the SHA and the 
letter of offer issued by Panatone dated March 27, 2002 (“Letter of Offer”), Panatone is required to gift, sell or transfer, 
as the case may be, without further consideration, the shares of the Transferee Company, as allotted to Panatone under 
this scheme of arrangement and reconstruction to: (a) the Government of India, to the extent of 25% of the Transferee 
Company’s issued shares; and (b) the shareholders of the Transferor Company who tendered equity shares to Panatone 
pursuant to the Letter of Offer, to the extent their tender was accepted by Panatone, but not exceeding the maximum extent 
of 20% of the total issued capital of the Transferee Company.

(E)	 In furtherance of the aforesaid and to give effect to the terms and conditions of SPA and SHA, this Scheme (as hereinafter 
defined) provides for the Demerger (as hereinafter defined) by way of reconstruction and splitting up of the Transferor 
Company by way of transfer of the Surplus Land of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company and the consequent 
issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company as on the Record 
Date, followed by transfer of specified equity shares of the Transferee Company allotted to Panatone Group Companies 
(as defined hereinafter) as set out in Clause 6 of the Scheme and various other matters consequential to or otherwise 
integrally connected with the above, in the manner provided for in the Scheme, pursuant to Sections 230 – 232, other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and 
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(F)	 The parties to this Scheme acknowledge the following:

	 (a)	 Pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble Delhi High Court in respect of the transfer of 32.5 acres of land situated 
at Padianallur, Chennai, comprised of 15 acres 98 cents in Old Survey No. 8/2, New Survey No. 155/2 and 16 
acres 52 cents in Old Survey No. 9, New Survey No. 156 (“Society Land”), DoT and the Board of Directors of 
the Transferor Company (as per resolution approved at meeting dated June 17, 2008 of the Board of Directors 
of Transferor Company) had agreed in 2008 to transfer the Society Land to the Videsh Sanchar Nigam Limited 
Employees Cooperative Housing Society, Chennai (“Society”), such Society Land being part of the land identified 
for the purpose of transfer to the Transferee Company under the SPA and SHA. In terms of the order of the Hon’ble 
Delhi High Court, the Society Land was transferred to the Society in July 2009. The amount of INR 68,09,517 (Indian 
Rupees Sixty Eight Lakhs Nine Thousand Five Hundred and Seventeen only) as cost and INR 61,79,641 (Indian 
Rupees Sixty One Lakhs Seventy Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Forty One only) as interest received by the 
Transferor Company for the said Society Land has been retained in a fixed deposit account maintained with Indian 
Overseas Bank bearing account number 001404000002170 (“FD Account”). As on October 16, 2017, the balance 
in the FD Account stands at INR 2,62,84,816 (Indian Rupees Two Crores Sixty Two Lakhs Eighty Four Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Sixteen only).

	 (b)	 In September 2013, the Delhi Metro Rail Corporation Limited (“DMRC”), informed the Transferor Company that as part 
of the development work for the Delhi Metro, DMRC required a portion of the Transferor Company’s land at Greater 
Kailash-I, New Delhi. The land parcel identified by DMRC for the purpose of acquisition, measuring approximately 
2.59 acres (“DMRC Land”), also included approximately 0.54 acres of the land identified for the purpose of transfer 
to the Transferee Company under the SPA and SHA. On January 3, 2014, the Transferor Company received an 
acquisition notice stating award announced by Land Acquisition Collector (“LAC”) on December 30, 2013 without 
giving any details of the award. The Transferor Company received the certified copy of the award on February 7, 
2014 as per which, the total compensation determined by the LAC was INR 1, 88, 80, 168/- (Indian Rupees One 
Crore Eighty Eight Lakhs Eight Thousand One Hundred and Sixty Eight only) based on indicative price fixed by 
Government of Delhi for agricultural land. Aggrieved by the said award, the Transferor Company filed a reference 
petition for proper determination of the compensation with LAC based on commercial usage of land. Simultaneously 
therewith, the Transferor Company also filed a writ petition with the Hon’ble Delhi High Court. On April 24, 2014, the 
Hon’ble Delhi High Court directed DMRC to deposit the sum of INR 247,29,75,648/- (Indian Rupees Two Hundred 
Forty Seven Crores Twenty Nine Lakhs Seventy Five Thousand Six Hundred and Forty Eight only) with the Court 
Registrar which has since been deposited by DMRC. The decision of the Hon’ble Delhi High Court on the quantum 
of the compensation to be received by the Transferor Company is presently pending. The DMRC has since acquired 
and taken possession of the DMRC Land from the Transferor Company.

(G)	 With a view to facilitate reconstruction or splitting up of erstwhile public sector companies into separate companies, the 
Central Government, vide, the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2016, has inserted the Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 with effect from April 1, 2016. The Statement of Object and Reasons to the Taxation Laws 
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(Amendment) Bill, 2016 provides that this amendment was made with a view to facilitate the reconstruction or splitting up 
of erstwhile public sector companies into separate companies and to give effect to the conditions attached to the transfer 
of shares by the Government and that there was a need to bring these types of reconstruction and splitting up within the 
scope of definition of the term “demerger”.

(H)	 In exercise of the powers conferred by Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Central 
Government pursuant to Central Board of Direct Taxes Notification 93/2016, No. 149/251/2015-TPL and Central Board of 
Direct Taxes Notification No.73/2017, F. No.149/251/2015-TPL specified that the reconstruction or splitting up of a company 
which ceased to be a public sector company as a result of transfer of its shares by the Central Government, into separate 
companies, shall be deemed to be a demerger, if the following conditions are fulfilled, namely:—

	 (a)	 that such reconstruction or splitting up has been made by way of transfer of any assets of the demerged company 
to the resulting company to give effect to the conditions mentioned in the Share Holders’ Agreement and Share 
Purchase Agreement; and

	 (b)	 that the resulting company is a public sector company on the appointed date indicated in the scheme approved by 
the Appellate Tribunal constituted under Section 410 of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) in this behalf.

	 Accordingly, the reconstruction and splitting up of the Transferor Company into separate companies, by way of transfer 
of the Surplus Land to the Transferee Company, is to be undertaken in terms of Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 and shall be in compliance with conditions notified in this respect by the Central Government.

(I)	 This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

	 (a)	 Part I, which deals with definitions and interpretation and share capital;

	 (b)	 Part II, which deals with the reconstruction and splitting up of the Transferor Company by way of transfer of Surplus 
Land to the Transferee Company;

	 (c)	 Part III, which deals with issue of shares of the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company; 
matters relating to accounts etc.;

	 (d)	 Part IV, which deals with the transfer of shares of Transferee Company by Panatone Group Companies to the 
Government of India and certain erstwhile public shareholders of the Transferor Company; and

	 (e)	 Part V, which deals with general terms and conditions applicable to the Scheme.

PART I

1.	 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

	 1.1	 In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions shall have the meaning 
as mentioned herein below: -

		  (a)	 “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified by the Government of India and currently in 
force), and the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent not repealed and replaced by notified sections of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and any amendment thereto or any other succeeding enactment for the time being in 
force;

		  (b)	 “Appointed Date” means the 30 March, 2018;

		  (c)	 “Associated Companies” means Tata Sons Limited, The Tata Power Company Limited, The Tata Iron and 
Steel Company Limited (now known as Tata Steel Limited) and Tata Industries Limited;

		  (d)	  “Board of Directors” in relation to each of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company means 
the board of directors of such company and, unless it is repugnant to the context, includes a duly authorised 
committee of the board;

		  (e)	  “Companies” shall mean the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company collectively;

		  (f)	 “Defence Compensation” shall mean any compensation that may be paid whether by the Department of 
Defence or by any other Governmental Authority in connection with the occupation and/ or acquisition of certain 
lands situated in Pune, which were formerly in the ownership of, or were believed by the Transferor Company 
to be in the ownership of, Overseas Communications Service and/ or the Transferor Company but which is 
presently occupied by, and in respect of which ownership is claimed by, the Department of Defence;
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		  (g)	 “Undisclosed Claims” shall mean third party claims that (A) have been made by a third party in writing against 
the Transferor Company in relation to the Surplus Land prior to 30 March 2018; and (B) are omitted from 
Schedule 2, or (in respect of third party claims made after October 25, 2017 in writing against the Transferor 
Company in relation to the Surplus Land) are not disclosed in writing to the Transferee Company in accordance 
with Clause 3.11, pursuant to a fraudulent or negligent withholding by the Transferor Company; and shall also 
include all claims by state governments for Property Taxes to the extent such claims relate to the Transferor 
Company’s ownership of Surplus Land prior to Effective Date;

		  (h)	 “Demerger” means the reconstruction and splitting up of the Transferor Company into separate companies 
by way of transfer of the Surplus Land of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company in terms of 
Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant sections of Income Tax Act, 
1961 and in compliance with conditions notified in this respect by Central Government and in terms of Sections 
230 to 232 of the Companies Act 2013, to give effect to the conditions mentioned under the SHA and SPA, 
and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor 
Company as set out in this Scheme;

		  (i)	 “DMRC Compensation” means 20.849 % of the aggregate compensation for the DMRC Land, as may be 
received by the Transferor Company pursuant the order from the concerned court and which shall be paid to 
the Transferee Company in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme;

		  (j)	 “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the conditions and matters referred to in Clause 7.12 
hereof have been fulfilled or waived and references in this Scheme to the date of “coming into effect of this 
Scheme” or “effectiveness of this Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective” shall mean the Effective 
Date;

		  (k)	 “Governmental Authority” shall mean any national, state, provincial, local or similar government, governmental, 
statutory, regulatory or administrative authority, government department, agency, commission, board, branch, 
tribunal or court or other entity authorized to make laws, rules, regulations, standards, requirements, procedures 
or to pass directions or orders having the force of law, or any non-governmental regulatory or administrative 
authority, body or other organization to the extent that the rules, regulations and standards, requirements, 
procedures or orders of such authority, body or other organization have the force of law, or any stock exchange 
of India or any other country;

		  (l)	 “NCLT, Mumbai” means the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench or such other forum or authority 
as may be vested with the powers of the National Company Law Tribunal and having jurisdiction over the 
Transferor Company for the purposes of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013;

		  (m)	 “Panatone” means Panatone Finvest Limited, a public limited company duly incorporated and existing under 
the Companies Act, 1956 on March 30, 1992, having its registered office at Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody 
Street Mumbai 400001;

		  (n)	 “Panatone Group Companies” means collectively, Panatone, Tata Sons Limited and Tata Power Company 
Limited;

		  (o)	 “Prior Documents” shall mean SPA, the SHA and the Letter of Offer;

		  (p)	 “Record Date” means the date to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company, for the 
purpose of determining the shareholders of the Transferor Company to whom equity shares of the Transferee 
Company shall be allotted pursuant to the Demerger under this Scheme;

		  (q)	 “Remaining Business” shall mean all the undertakings, businesses, activities, operations, assets and 
liabilities (including investments in listed and unlisted shares, securities, identified assets and bank balances) 
of the Transferor Company, other than those comprised in the Surplus Land;

		  (r)	 “Surplus Land” means the pieces and parcels of land described in Schedule 1 hereunder and shall mean and 
include all the rights, title, interest and/or liabilities, if any, of the Transferor Company in relation thereto. Without 
prejudice and limitation to the generality of the above, the Surplus Land shall mean and include:

			   (i)	 all rights, title, interest, covenant, undertakings, liabilities including continuing rights, title and interest in 
connection with the pieces and parcels of land described in Schedule 1, including the balances in the FD 
Account, and DMRC Compensation;
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			   (ii)	 Demerged Liabilities, including the list of Demerged Liabilities known set out in Schedule 2;

			   (iii)	 litigations, claims and disputes pertaining to the Surplus Land, including those set out in Schedule 2; and

			   (iv)	 all benefits and obligations under the contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements 
and other instruments of any nature relating exclusively to the pieces and parcels of land described in 
Schedule 1;

		  (s)	 “Scheme” means this scheme of arrangement and reconstruction including any modification or amendment 
hereto, made in accordance with the terms hereof;

		  (t)	 “SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

		  (u)	 “SEBI Scheme Circular” means Circular No. CIR/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 on Schemes of 
Arrangement by Listed Entities, and shall include any modifications or amendments thereof;

		  (v)	 “Share Entitlement Ratio” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 5.1;

		  (w)	 “Stock Exchanges” means the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, collectively; 
and

		  (x)	 “Tax” or “Taxes” means and includes: (a) all forms of direct tax and indirect tax, duty, surcharge, cess or any 
other tax of similar nature, including, minimum alternate tax, dividend distribution tax, value added tax, service 
tax, goods and service tax or any other taxes, withholding tax whenever or wherever created or imposed by, or 
payable to, any Government Authority by reference to profits, gains, assets or other reference, in relation to the 
arrangements envisaged under this Scheme; and (b) all charges, interest, penalties, costs and fines incidental 
or relating to any taxes falling within (a) above or which arise as a result of the failure to pay any taxes on its 
due date or to comply with any obligation relating to taxes and shall include any liabilities for the taxes of any 
another person, whether by contract, operation of law or otherwise, and (c) shall not include any reference to 
Property Taxes.

	 1.2	 References to “Clauses”, “Sections”, “Schedules” and “Parts”, unless otherwise stated, are references to schedules, 
clauses, sections and parts of this Scheme.

	 1.3	 The headings herein shall not affect the construction of this Scheme.

	 1.4	 Unless the context otherwise requires, reference to any law or to any provision thereof shall include references to any 
such law or to any provision thereof as it may, after the date hereof, from time to time, be amended, supplemented or 
re-enacted, or to any law or any provision which replaces it, and any reference to a statutory provision shall include 
any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision.

	 1.5	 The singular shall include the plural and vice versa; and references to one gender include all genders.

	 1.6	 Any phrase introduced by the terms “including”, “include”, “in particular” or any similar expression shall be construed 
without limitation.

	 1.7	 References to a person shall include any individual, firm, body corporate (whether incorporated), government, state 
or agency of a state or any joint venture, association, partnership, works council or employee representatives body 
(whether or not having separate legal personality).

2.	 SHARE CAPITAL

	 2.1		  The share capital of Transferor Company and Transferee Company, respectively, as on October 23, 2017 is as under:

			   (a)	 Transferor Company

A. 	 AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
	 400,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 4,000,000,000

B. 	 ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
	 285,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 2,850,000,000

C. 	 PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
285,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 2,850,000,000
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		  (b)	 Transferee Company

A. 	 AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
	 250,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 2,500,000

B. 	 ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
	 50,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 500,000

C.	 PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT IN INR
	 50,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 500,000

PART II

3.	 RECONSTRUCTION AND SPLITTING UP OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY BY WAY OF TRANSFER OF SURPLUS 
LAND TO THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

	 3.1	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall, 
pursuant to Section 232(4) of the Act and Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other 
relevant sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961, without any further act or deed, be split up and reconstructed by way 
of transfer of the Surplus Land to the Transferee Company so as to invest in the Transferee Company the rights, title 
and interest (if any) of the Transferor Company in the Surplus Land and the Transferor Company will thereupon stand 
reconstructed and split-up into separate companies.

	 3.2	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, by way of reconstruction and splitting 
up of the Transferor Company, all the assets and liabilities pertaining to the Surplus Land stand transferred to and 
vested in the Transferee Company at their respective book values as appearing in the books of the Transferor 
Company immediately before the Appointed Date, and shall become the property and an integral part of the Transferee 
Company.

	 3.3	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, by way of reconstruction and splitting 
up of the Transferor Company, all immovable property pertaining to the Surplus Land, and any documents of title/
rights and easements in relation thereto shall be vested in and transferred to the Transferee Company and shall 
belong to the Transferee Company thereafter. The mutation of the title to the immovable properties pertaining to the 
Surplus Land shall be made and duly recorded by the appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme 
and upon the Scheme becoming effective, in accordance with the terms hereof, in favour of the Transferee Company.

	 3.4	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all debts, liabilities (including 
contingent liabilities and/or obligations which arise in relation to the Surplus Land), Taxes (excepting Property Tax 
on the Surplus Land prior to Effective Date), duties and obligations of any kind, nature or description thereof, of the 
Transferor Company pertaining to the Surplus Land, secured or unsecured (“Demerged Liabilities”), shall without 
any further act or deed, be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to the Transferee Company. 
Notwithstanding the Appointed Date, all claims by state governments for property taxes to the extent such claims 
relate to the Surplus Land (“Property Taxes”) prior to Effective Date, shall be borne by the Transferor Companies; 
and all claims by state governments for Property Taxes on the Surplus Land, on and from Effective Date onwards 
shall be borne by the Transferee Company.

	 3.5	 The Transferee Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the Transferor Company from and against, any and 
all losses, liabilities, claims, damages, actions, Taxes (including claims for Property Tax on the Surplus Land on or 
after Effective Date), costs and expenses incurred or suffered in relation to Demerged Liabilities except Undisclosed 
Claims, upon and after the Scheme becoming effective. To this extent, the Transferee Company shall, from time to 
time, advance sums that are adequate to meet all such losses, liabilities, claims, damages, actions, Taxes (including 
claims for Property Tax on the Surplus Land on or after Effective Date), costs and expenses to the Transferor 
Company at least two weeks before they become due to any third party, including to any Governmental Authority. 
Without prejudice to the foregoing, if, for any reason, the Transferor Company pays any such claims, damages, costs, 
expenses, Taxes (including claims for Property Tax on the Surplus Land on or after Effective Date) and liabilities, the 
Transferee Company shall reimburse the Transferor Company for all such costs promptly and in any event within 
fourteen days of a demand for the reimbursement of any such claims, damages, costs, expenses, Taxes (including 
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claims for Property Tax on the Surplus Land on or after Effective Date) and liabilities being made on the Transferee 
Company.

	 3.6	 The Transferor Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the Transferee Company from and against, any and 
all losses, liabilities, claims, damages, actions, Taxes, costs and expenses in relation to the Undisclosed Claims 
(including, for the avoidance of doubt, Property Tax on the Surplus Land prior to Effective Date). The Transferor 
Company shall, from time to time, advance sums that are adequate to meet all such losses, liabilities, claims, 
damages, actions, Taxes (including claims for Property Tax on the Surplus Land prior to Effective Date), costs and 
expenses to the Transferee Company at least two weeks before they become due to any third party including to 
any Governmental Authority. Without prejudice to the foregoing, if, for any reason, the Transferee Company pays 
any such claims, damages, costs, expenses, Taxes (including claims for Property Tax on the Surplus Land prior to 
Effective Date) and liabilities, the Transferor Company shall reimburse the Transferee Company for all such costs 
promptly and in any event within fourteen days of a demand for the reimbursement of any such claims, damages, 
costs, expenses, Taxes (including claims for Property Tax on the Surplus Land prior to Effective Date) and liabilities 
being made on the Transferor Company.

	 3.7	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all contracts, deeds, bonds, 
agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Surplus Land 
to which the Transferor Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company may be eligible, and 
all charges or security interests over the Surplus Land or part thereof, and which are subsisting or having effect 
immediately before the Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect on or against or in favour of the Transferee 
Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee 
Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto. It shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any 
third party or other person who is a party to any such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements 
and other instruments to give effect to the provisions of this Clause 3.7 of the Scheme.

	 3.8	 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and the fact that vesting of the Surplus Land occurs by virtue 
of this Scheme itself, the Transferor Company shall, within 14 business days from the Effective Date, transfer to the 
Transferee Company the balance in the FD Account as actually received from the bank, in such manner as may be 
agreed by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, and such payment by the Transferor Company 
shall extinguish any and all obligations of the Transferor Company, Panatone and its Associated Companies under 
the Prior Documents with respect to the Society Land at Chennai. After February 13, 2002, the Transferor Company 
has not transferred, and has not suffered any encroachment on, any part of the Surplus Land in Padianallur, Chennai 
other than the Society Land. The Transferor Company shall indemnify and hold the Transferee Company harmless 
against any falsity in the immediately foregoing sentence. Except to the extent provided by the preceding two 
sentences, all Surplus Land shall be transferred to the Transferee Company on an as-is-where-is basis.

	 3.9	 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and the fact that vesting of the Surplus Land occurs by 
virtue of this Scheme itself, the Transferor Company shall, within 10 business days of the Effective Date or within 
10 business days of receipt of DMRC Compensation by the Transferor Company pursuant to obtaining the order of 
the relevant court in respect of DMRC Compensation, whichever is later, transfer to the Transferee Company the 
DMRC Compensation, net of applicable Taxes and all costs, in such manner as may be agreed by the Transferor 
Company and the Transferee Company, and such transfer by the Transferor Company shall extinguish all obligations 
of the Transferor Company, Panatone and its Associated Companies to the Transferee Company with respect to 
the DMRC Land. Provided however, if the Transferor Company is required to repay or deposit with the courts any 
payments received towards DMRC Compensation on account of an appeal, revision, review or any further order of 
the concerned court or any higher court, the Transferee Company shall make payments of relevant amounts to the 
Transferor Company no later than 10 business days prior to the due date for repayment or deposit to enable the 
Transferor Company to comply with such further order.

	 3.10	 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Surplus 
Land occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the Transferee Company, at any time after the coming into effect of this 
Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, will take such actions 
and execute such documents (including deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements) with any party to 
any contract or arrangement in relation to the Surplus Land to which the Transferor Company is a party in order to 
give formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferor Company will, if necessary, also be party to the above. The 
Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such 
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writings on behalf of Transferor Company and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to 
above on part of the Transferor Company.

	 3.11	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, without any limitations whatsoever, all 
legal, taxation or other proceedings, whether civil or criminal (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority 
or tribunal), by or against the Transferor Company and relating to the Surplus Land, under any statute, whether 
pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted any time thereafter, including those set out in Schedule 2 
but excluding Undisclosed Claims, shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company after the 
Effective Date. The Transferor Company shall in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal or other 
proceedings against the Transferee Company. From time to time until the Effective Date, the Transferor Company 
shall notify the Transferee Company of any claims that it receives from third parties in respect of the Surplus Land 
within ten business days of such receipt.

	 3.12	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company undertakes, 
without any limitations whatsoever, to have such legal or other proceedings relating to or in connection with the 
Surplus Land of the Transferor Company, initiated by or against the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date, 
transferred in its name and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee 
Company to the exclusion of the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company shall indemnify and hold harmless 
the Transferor Company, from and against, any claims made against it and expenses incurred or suffered in this 
regard.

	 3.13	 For the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed under Sections 230 and 232 of the Act in respect of this 
Scheme, the Transferee Company shall at any time pursuant to the orders on this Scheme be entitled to get the 
recordal of the change in the legal right(s) upon the vesting of the Surplus Land in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 230 and 232 of the Act. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall jointly and severally 
be authorized to execute any writings as are required to remove any difficulties and carry out any formalities or 
compliance for the implementation of this Scheme.

	 3.14	 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme, from the Appointed Date and up to and including the 
Effective Date:

		  (a)	 The Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on all business and activities relating to the 
Surplus Land for and on behalf of the Transferee Company.

		  (b)	 All profits accruing to the Transferor Company and all Taxes thereof (excluding Property Tax on the Surplus 
Land prior to Effective Date) or losses arising or incurred by it relating to the Surplus Land shall, for all purposes, 
be treated as the profits, Taxes (excluding Property Tax on the Surplus Land prior to Effective Date) or losses 
as the case may be of the Transferee Company.

		  (c)	 The Transferor Company in relation to the Surplus Land shall not undertake any additional financial commitments 
of any nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts or incur any other liabilities or expenditure, issue any additional 
guarantees, indemnities, letters of comfort or commitment either for itself or on behalf of its subsidiaries or 
group companies or any third party, or sell, transfer, alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber or deal with the 
same (except if the Scheme is withdrawn or fails).

4.	 REMAINING BUSINESS

	 The Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and obligations pertaining thereto shall continue to belong to and 
be vested in and be managed by the Transferor Company. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that the Transferee 
Company shall have no right or interest to any part or the whole of the Defence Compensation.

PART III

5.	 ISSUE OF NEW SHARES; REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY; MATTERS RELATING 
TO ACCOUNTS ETC.

	 5.1	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon vesting of the Surplus Land into the Transferee Company and in 
consideration of the Demerger, the Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act, instrument or 
deed, issue and allot to each member of the Transferor Company whose name is recorded in the register of members 
as a shareholder of the Transferor Company on the Record Date, or his legal heirs, executors or administrators 
or (in case of a corporate entity) its successors, equity shares in the Transferee Company in the ratio of 1 (One) 
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equity shares in the Transferee Company of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten only) each credited as fully paid up 
for every 1 (One) equity share of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten only) each fully paid up held by such member in 
the Transferor Company (the “Share Entitlement Ratio”) as on the Record Date. The Transferor Company shall 
furnish the Transferee Company with a list of shareholders as on the Record Date from its SEBI-registered registrar 
and share transfer agent. The Transferor Company shall not tamper with, amend, revise, modify, or qualify the list 
so obtained from the registrar and share transfer agent. The Transferor Company shall indemnify and hold the 
Transferee Company harmless for any breach of the immediately preceding sentence.

	 5.2	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the above provisions, the shareholders of Transferor Company 
as on the Record Date, shall receive demat share receipts of credit of new equity shares in their share accounts 
maintained with the depository participants reflecting the equity share capital of the Transferee Company issued 
in accordance with Clause 5.1 above. The Transferee Company shall, if so required, be eligible to issue letters of 
allotment for the equity shares pending issue of receipts for credit to the account of the shareholders with the depository 
participant under the depository system. It is clarified that members of the Transferor Company who hold their equity 
shares in dematerialized form shall be issued equity shares of the Transferee Company in dematerialized form as 
per the records maintained by the depositary participant as on the Record Date. In the event that the Transferee 
Company has received notice from any shareholder that shares are to be issued in certificate form or if any member 
has not provided the requisite details relating to the account with a depository participant or other confirmations as 
may be required, then the Transferee Company shall issue shares in certificate form to such member. All physical 
share certificates issued pursuant to this clause for the new shares in the Transferee Company shall be sent by the 
Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company at their respective registered addresses as 
appearing in the register of the Transferor Company on the Record Date (or in the case of joint holders to the address 
of that one of the joint holders whose name stands first in such register in respect of such joint holding) and the 
Transferee Company shall not be responsible for any loss in transmission.

	 5.3	 In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any member of the 
Transferor Company, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company shall be empowered in appropriate cases, 
prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in registered holder 
were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor of the shares in the 
Transferor Company and in relation to the shares issued by the Transferee Company after the effectiveness of the 
Scheme. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company shall be empowered to remove such difficulties as may 
arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and registration of new shareholders in the Transferor Company 
on account of difficulties faced in the transaction period.

	 5.4	 Equity shares to be issued by the Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme in respect of such of the equity 
shares of the Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of Section 126 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or otherwise shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of a court or otherwise, also be kept 
in abeyance by the Transferee Company.

	 5.5	 The equity shares issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of this Scheme shall rank pari passu in all 
respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee Company.

	 5.6	 Immediately upon the issuance of shares by Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company 
pursuant to Clause 5.1 of this Scheme, the entire share capital of the Transferee Company as existing on the 
Appointed Date shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed. The reduction in the share capital as aforesaid, 
of the Transferee Company shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and Transferee Company shall not be 
required to follow the process under Sections 66 of the Act or any other provisions of applicable law separately.

	 5.7	 Accounting Treatment

		  (a)	 In the books of the Transferee Company:

			   Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall account for the Scheme and its effects in 
its books of account with effect from the Appointed Date as under:

			   (i)	 The Transferee Company shall record the assets and liabilities of the splitting up and reconstruction by 
way of transfer of Surplus Land vested in it in accordance with this Scheme, as per the book values 
attributable to such assets and liabilities.
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			   (ii)	 The shortfall, if any, on the difference of the aggregate value of the assets and the aggregate value of the 
liabilities of the splitting up and reconstruction by way of transfer of Surplus Land taken over pursuant to 
this Scheme as detailed in Clause 3 shall be recorded as ‘goodwill’ in the books of Transferee Company.

		  (b)	 In the books of the Transferor Company:

			   Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall account for the Scheme and its effects in 
its books of account with effect from the Appointed Date as under:

			   (i)	 The accounts representing the assets and liabilities of the splitting up and reconstruction of the Transferor 
Company by way of transfer of Surplus Land shall accordingly stand reduced / closed on splitting up and 
reconstruction to the Transferee Company.

			   (ii)	 Any transfer of the assets and liabilities to the Transferee Company shall be adjusted by the Transferor 
Company in its general reserves in the reserves and surplus.

	 5.8	 Within 30 days of the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall apply for listing and/or trading of its equity shares 
including those issued in terms of Clause 5.1 above on the Stock Exchanges, in accordance with the applicable 
laws including the SEBI Scheme Circular, the requirements imposed or concessions, if any, and other terms and 
conditions agreed with the respective Stock Exchanges. The equity shares allotted pursuant to this Scheme shall 
remain frozen in the depositories system till relevant directions in relation to listing/trading are given by the relevant 
Stock Exchanges. Except for issuance of shares by Transferee Company and reduction of capital of Transferee 
Company, in each case as envisaged pursuant to this Clause 5, there will be no change in the share capital of the 
Transferee Company till the listing of the equity shares of the Transferee Company on the relevant Stock Exchanges.

PART IV

6.	 TRANSFER OF SHARES OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY BY PANATONE GROUP COMPANIES

	 6.1	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such number of shares as are issued 
and allotted to Panatone Group Companies by the Transferee Company, pursuant to Clause 5.1 above, in respect of 
Panatone owning 25% of the subscribed equity capital of the Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their allotment 
to Panatone and upon the Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock exchanges, be transferred to 
the Government of India, in order to give effect to the provisions of the SPA and SHA, without any further act or deed. 
Such transfer shall be effected within 30 business days of listing and trading of the shares of the Transferee Company 
by Panatone issuing duly executed delivery instructions to its depository participant.

	 6.2	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such number of shares as are issued and 
allotted to Panatone Group Companies by the Transferee Company, pursuant to Clause 5.1, in respect of Panatone 
Group Companies owning 20% of the subscribed equity capital of the Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their 
allotment to Panatone Group Companies and upon the Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock 
exchanges, be transferred, in order to give effect to the terms and conditions of the Letter of Offer, without any further 
act or deed and at no cost to Panatone Group Companies, in a proportionate manner, to those public shareholders of 
the Transferor Company (or their legal heirs/successors) whose shares were acquired by Panatone pursuant to the 
open offer made vide the Letter of Offer (“Eligible VSNL Shareholders”) in accordance with the terms set out in this 
Part IV of the Scheme.

	 6.3	 Within 15 business days of allotment of shares by the Transferee Company to Panatone Group Companies pursuant 
to Clause 5.1 above, the Transferee Company shall dispatch a format of a notice (“Transfer Notice”) to each Eligible 
VSNL Shareholder, at the last registered address of such Eligible VSNL Shareholder available with the Transferor 
Company, which shall contain or require the furnishing of such documents and information as may be necessary to 
give effect to the transfers contemplated in this Part IV.

	 6.4	 Each Eligible VSNL Shareholder shall be required to submit the duly completed Transfer Notice to the Transferee 
Company on or prior to the expiry of 30 business days from the date of dispatch of the Transfer Notice (“Election 
Period”).

	 6.5	 Panatone Group Companies shall within 60 business days of the later of (i) expiry of the Election Period and (ii) of 
the Transferee Company being listed and quoted for trading on the recognized stock exchanges, consummate the 
transfers to Eligible VSNL Shareholders as contemplated in Clause 6.2 in such manner as may be determined by 
relevant Panatone Group Companies.
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	 6.6	 In respect of Eligible VSNL Shareholders who are non-residents, the transfer of Transferee Company shares will be 
subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and/or such other Governmental Authorities as may be required 
under applicable laws. The Transferee Company will apply for the requisite approvals in this regard and the transfers 
contemplated in this Part IV will be subject to and made in compliance with such terms and conditions as may be 
prescribed by the relevant Governmental Authorities.

	 6.7	 Notwithstanding anything contained herein, if Panatone Group Companies determine that the transfer of the shares 
or any part thereof cannot be effected due to applicable laws (including the non-receipt of approvals required, if 
any) or otherwise, Panatone Group Companies may elect, and take all such actions as may be necessary to remit 
consideration in lieu of or in respect of the Eligible VSNL Shareholders’ entitlement in terms of the Letter of Offer, in a 
compliant manner and to ensure that this does not delay the effectiveness or implementation of the Scheme. Panatone 
Group Companies shall enter into such further documents and take such further actions as may be necessary or 
appropriate in this behalf and to enable the actions contemplated herein. For this purpose, the Transferee Company 
shall extend all support and co-operate with Panatone Group Companies and execute any documents as may be 
necessary.

	 6.8	 Any shares which are not transferred to the relevant Eligible VSNL Shareholders on or before the tenth anniversary 
of the Effective Date for any reasons whatsoever including but not limited to an inability to locate one or more Eligible 
VSNL Shareholder(s) or non-receipt of requisite approvals or litigation shall, (whether for all such remaining shares 
or any part of them), be sold in such manner as the relevant Panatone Group Companies deem fit and the proceeds 
thereof shall be deposited with the Investor Education and Protection Fund (constituted pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 or the provisions of Section 11 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992).

	 6.9	 Upon Panatone transferring 7,12,50,000 shares of the Transferee Company to the Government of India in accordance 
with Clause 6.1 above as an essential part of this Scheme, each of Panatone and its Associated Companies shall be 
deemed to have fully discharged all their obligations under the Prior Documents in respect of the transfer of shares 
of the ‘resulting company’ (as defined in the SHA and SPA i.e., separate entity formed pursuant to demerger of 
surplus lands by way of court approved scheme of arrangement) to the Government of India, including its obligations 
under article 7.10 (a) (ii) and (c) of the SPA, section 4.7 (a) (ii) and 4.7 (c) of the SHA and paragraphs 1.2(d) and 7 
of the Letter of Offer. Upon Panatone Group Companies transferring 5,70,00,000 shares of the Transferee Company 
in accordance with Clause 6.5 above as an essential part of this Scheme, each of Panatone and its Associated 
Companies shall be deemed to have fully discharged all their obligations under the Prior Documents in respect of the 
transfer of shares of the ‘resulting company’ (as defined in the SHA and SPA i.e., separate entity formed pursuant 
to demerger of surplus lands by way of court approved scheme of arrangement) to the Eligible VSNL Shareholders 
respectively, including its obligations under paragraphs 1.2(d) and 7 of the Letter of Offer.

	 6.10	 Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 6.9 and notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the 
Prior Documents, provided that the transfers set forth in Clauses 6.2 and 6.5 are duly made, none of Panatone and 
its Associated Companies shall have any liability whatsoever if one or more Eligible VSNL Shareholder(s) do not 
receive the shares for any reason whatsoever including (without limitation) on account of non-receipt of the Transfer 
Notice by any Eligible VSNL Shareholder and/or non-receipt of completed Transfer Notice from the Eligible VSNL 
Shareholder(s) and/ or non-receipt of any required approvals.

PART V

7.	 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

	 7.1	 As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the authorised share capital 
of the Transferee Company shall automatically stand increased, without any further act, instrument or deed on the 
part of the Transferee Company, such that upon the effectiveness of the Scheme the authorised share capital of 
the Transferee Company shall be Rs. 100000000000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into equity share 
capital of Rs.90000000000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores), comprising of 9000000000 (Nine Hundred Crores) 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference share capital of Rs.10000000000/- (Rupees One 
Thousand Crores), comprising of 1000000000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten 
only) each, without any further act or deed. The capital clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee 
Company shall, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and without any further act or deed, be replaced by the 
following clause:
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	 MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

		  “The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.100000000000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into 
equity share capital of Rs. 90000000000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores) comprising of 9000000000 (Nine Hundred 
Crores) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference share capital of Rs.10000000000/- (Rupees 
One Thousand Crores), comprising of 1000000000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees 
Ten only) each with the rights, privileges and conditions attaching thereto as may be provided by the Articles of 
Association of the Company for the time period.”

		  Further, Article 4 of the Articles of Association of the Transferee Company shall, upon the coming into effect of this 
Scheme and without any further act or deed, be replaced by the following clause:

		  ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

		  “The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.100000000000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided 
into equity share capital of Rs.90000000000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores), comprising of 9000000000 (Nine 
Hundred Crores) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference share capital of Rs.10000000000/- 
(Rupees One Thousand Crores), comprising of 1000000000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of  
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each”

	 7.2	 It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of Clause 7.1, the consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company 
to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for amendment of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee 
Company and no further resolutions under the applicable provisions of the Act would be required.

	 7.3	 Pursuant to this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall file the requisite forms with the registrar of companies for 
alteration of its authorised share capital and shall bear all costs and expense in relation to its alteration of share 
capital.

	 7.4	 The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall make necessary applications before the NCLT, Mumbai 
and Central Government respectively for sanction of this Scheme under Sections 230 and 232 of the Act and any other 
applicable provisions of law. The Transferee Company shall be responsible for obtaining all registrations, approvals 
and filings, inter alia, for the purpose of listing, as may be necessary, the Transferee Company and/or its securities 
pursuant to, in connection with or as a consequence of the consideration, effectiveness and/or implementation of the 
Scheme, with or from any Governmental Authority or stock exchange, provided that the Transferor Company shall 
extend reasonable cooperation in this regard.

	 7.5	 The stamp duty payable on any order sanctioning this Scheme shall be fully borne by the Transferee Company as 
principal obligor, and shall not be borne in whole or in part by the Transferor Company or Panatone and its Associated 
Companies.

	 7.6	 Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 7.5 above, it is expressly clarified that the Transferee Company shall 
bear (a) stamp duty, if any, for the transfer of the Surplus Land from the Transferor Company to the Transferee 
Company pursuant to this Scheme, (b) costs, if any, in relation to registration, approvals and/or filings in respect of the 
Transferee Company, its securities and/or the Scheme and/or stamp duty in relation to its alteration of share capital, 
pursuant to, in connection with or as a consequence of the consideration, effectiveness and/or implementation of the 
Scheme, with or from any Governmental Authority, stock exchange, holders of any securities issued by or on behalf 
of the Transferor Company or any other person, whether within or outside India, and (c) costs in relation to listing of 
any securities of the Transferee Company, pursuant to, in connection with or as a consequence of the Scheme, on 
any stock exchange whether within or outside India.

	 7.7	 All the costs associated (including any stamp duty payable for the transfer of any shares pursuant to Part IV above 
or Taxes arising in relation thereto) with transfer of shares issued to Panatone Group Companies under this Scheme 
which are to be transferred in accordance with the provisions of Part IV of this Scheme, shall be borne by the 
respective transferees.

	 7.8	 With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, if any Tax (including any interest, 
penalties and/or associated costs) is at all leviable or can be the subject matter of any demand, the same is an obligation 
transferred to the Transferee Company and shall not be assessed directly or demanded from the Transferor Company 
or from Panatone or its Associated Companies, pursuant to this declaration made to the Scheme and sanctioned 
by the NCLT and Central Government respectively. In the event that any tax (including any interest, penalties and/
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or associated costs) is levied or becomes capable of being levied on the Transferor Company or Panatone or its 
Associated Companies as the case may be, the Transferee Company and its assets may be subject to the related 
Tax charge and no assets or properties of the Transferor Company, Panatone or its Associated Companies shall be 
subject to any such Tax charge or claim.

	 7.9	 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme, any payment required to be made by the Transferee 
Company to the Transferor Company and/or Panatone and/or its Associated Companies in discharge of indemnification 
obligations under this Scheme (including under Clause 3.5); and any payment required to be made by the Transferor 
Company to the Transferee Company in discharge of indemnification obligations under this Scheme (including under 
Clause 3.6) shall, in each case, be made free and clear of, and without deduction for or on account of any Taxes, 
charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties, except as may be required under applicable law. If any Taxes, charges, 
fees, costs, expenses or duties are required to be deducted or to be paid, such additional amounts shall be paid 
by the Transferee Company as shall ensure that the Transferor Company and/or Panatone and/or its Associated 
Companies, as the case may be, receive, after deduction by the Transferee Company or payment by Transferor 
Company/Panatone/its Associated Companies of all applicable Taxes, charges, fees, costs, expenses, duties, etc., a 
net amount equal to the full amount which it would have received had such payment not been subject to such Taxes, 
charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties. If any Taxes, charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties are required to be 
deducted or to be paid, such additional amounts shall be paid by the Transferor Company as shall ensure that the 
Transferee Company, receives, after deduction by the Transferor Company of all applicable Taxes, charges, fees, 
costs, expenses, duties, etc., a net amount equal to the full amount which it would have received had such payment 
not been subject to such Taxes, charges, fees, costs, expenses or duties.

	 7.10	 The Transferor Company (by its Board of Directors) and the Transferee Company (by its Board of Directors), may, 
in their full and absolute discretion, assent to any alteration or modification to this Scheme which either the Boards 
of Directors of the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, as the case may be, deem fit. The Transferor 
Company and the Transferee Company each through its Board of Directors, jointly and as mutually agreed in writing, 
may in their full and absolute discretion, assent to any alteration or modification to which the NCLT, Mumbai or 
Central Government and/or any other Governmental Authority may deem fit to approve or impose and may give such 
directions as they may consider necessary to mutually settle any question or difficulty arising under the Scheme or in 
regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or its implementation hereof or in any matter whatsoever 
connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of this Scheme and 
if necessary, to waive any of those (to the extent permissible under applicable law). Any issue as to whether any 
asset, liability or litigation pertains to the Surplus Land or not shall be decided by the Boards of Directors of the 
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, on the basis of evidence that they may deem relevant for the 
purpose (including the books and records of the Transferor Company). The Transferor Company and the Transferee 
Company each through its Board of Directors may also in their full and absolute discretion, jointly and as mutually 
agreed in writing, withdraw or abandon this Scheme at any stage prior to its becoming effective. Without prejudice 
to the foregoing, in the event that any Governmental Authority or NCLT, Mumbai or Central Government imposes an 
onerous condition or deletes any of the protections or indemnities provided to the Transferor Company or Panatone 
and / or its Associated Companies pursuant to the terms of this Scheme, the Scheme shall be withdrawn or shall 
become null and void, unless the Transferor Company and Transferee Company agree to continue to pursue or 
implement the Scheme.

	 7.11	  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the above provisions, the shareholders of the Transferor 
Company as on the Record Date shall receive new share certificates of Transferee Company reflecting the issued 
share capital of the Transferee Company (after excluding the original issued capital), and the Transferee Company 
shall, if so required be eligible to issue letters of allotment for the shares pending issue of share certificates.

	 7.12	 The Scheme is conditional and is subject to –

		  (a)	 the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of various classes of the members and / or 
creditors of each of the Companies, as required under the Act, or dispensation having being from the members 
and/or creditors, and the requisite order of the NCLT, Mumbai (in respect of Transferor Company) and the 
Central Government (in respect of Transferee Company), being obtained in this regard;

		  (b)	 the Scheme being approved by the majority of public shareholders of the Transferor Company (through 
e-voting) as may be required under the SEBI Scheme Circular, i.e., the votes cast by public shareholders in 
favour of the resolution are more than the number of votes cast by public shareholders against it;
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		  (c)	 the Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT, Mumbai and the Central Government respectively under the 
provisions of the Act;

		  (d)	 the approval of SEBI in terms of the SEBI Scheme Circulars being obtained upon this Scheme being sanctioned 
by the NCLT, Mumbai and the Central Government respectively;

		  (e)	 the certified copies of the orders referred to in Clause 7.12(c) of this Scheme being filed with the jurisdictional 
Registrar of Companies; and

		  (f)	 all necessary regulatory and governmental approvals and registrations required pursuant to, in connection with 
or as a consequence of the Scheme, being obtained from the relevant Governmental Authorities within and 
outside India (including approvals, if any, required from the Government of India, the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, or any stock exchange).

	 7.13	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company immediately prior to the 
Effective Date shall, without any further act or deed be replaced by the new Board of Directors of the Transferee 
Company constituted in accordance with the Act and majority of which shall be comprised of nominees of the 
President of India.

	 7.14	 In the event of this Scheme failing to take effect by March 31, 2019 or such later date as may be agreed by the 
respective Board of Directors of the Companies, this Scheme shall become null and void and in that case no rights 
and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter-se by the Companies or their shareholders or creditors 
or employees or any other person.

	 7.15	 The provisions contained in this Scheme are inextricably inter-linked with the other provisions and the Scheme 
constitutes an integral whole. The Scheme would be given effect to only if is approved in its entirety unless specifically 
agreed otherwise by the respective Board of Directors of each Company.

	 7.16	 Subject to Clause 7.10 above, if any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the 
same shall not, subject to the decision of the Companies, affect the validity or implementation of the other parts and/
or provisions of this Scheme.

	 7.17	 Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the accounts of the Transferor Company, as on the Appointed Date shall be 
reconstructed in accordance with the terms of this Scheme.

	 7.18	 Each of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall be entitled to file/revise its income tax returns, TDS 
returns and other statutory returns, if required, and shall have the right to claim refunds, advance tax credits, credit of 
tax under Section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, credit of tax deducted at source, etc., if any, as may be required 
consequent to implementation of this Scheme.

	 7.19	 This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
related notification and other relevant sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If any terms or provisions of this Scheme 
are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent with any of the said provisions at a later date, whether as a result of 
any amendment of law or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reason whatsoever, the aforesaid 
provisions of the Tax laws shall prevail. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company 
shall exercise their discretion to modify the Scheme to the extent determined necessary to comply with the said 
provisions. Such modification will however not affect other parts of the Scheme. If, and to the extent, any tax is levied 
on a party to this Scheme under the Income Tax Act, 1961 in relation to this Scheme then the party, which is liable 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 to pay such tax, alone shall be liable for such tax with no recourse against another 
party.
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SCHEDULE 1 
DESCRIPTION OF AREA OF SURPLUS LAND

LOCATION SURPLUS LAND 
AS PER SHA/ SPA

SURPLUS LAND ACTUALLY TRANSFERRED AS ON 
APPOINTED DATE / REMARKS

Dighi- Pune 524 Acres 524 Acres
Halishar- Kolkata 35.19 Acres 35.19 Acres
Chattarpur- New Delhi 58 Acres 58 Acres
Greater Kailash – New Delhi 70 Acres 69.46 Acres.

Refer to recital at paragraph F(b) of the Scheme and Clause 
3.9 thereof.

Padianallur – Chennai  85.94 acres 53.04 Acres

The SHA mentioned the total area of the Surplus Land in Chennai 
as 85.94 Acres.

In 2009 in connection with the directions of the Hon’ble Delhi High 
Court, total area of the Surplus Land in Chennai was measured as 
85.58 Acres of which 32.5 Acres was transferred as Society Land 
(refer to recital at paragraph F(a) of the Scheme and Clause 
3.8 thereof).

Now, using advanced technology (GPS and total survey station 
method) the remaining Surplus Land in Chennai (i.e. remaining 
after the sale of the Society Land) has been measured to be 53.04 
Acres.
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Regd. Office: Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051, India   
CIN: U67120MH1992PLC069769 Tel: +91 22 26598235/36 , 26598346, 26598459 /26598458  Web site: www.nseindia .com 

 

Ref: NSE/LIST/14578                                                                                 February 28, 2018 
 
The Company Secretary & General Counsel (India) 
Tata Communications Limited 
C21 & C36, G Block, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Vidyanagari Post Office, Bandra 
Mumbai - 400098 
 

Kind Attn: Mr. Manish Sansi 
Dear Sir, 
 
Sub: Revised Observation letter for Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction among Tata 
Communications Limited and Hemisphere Properties India Limited and their respective 
Shareholders and Creditors. 

We refer to our observation letter Ref: NSE/LIST/14578 dated February 09, 2018 issued to the 
Company based on SEBI’s comments letter dated February 09, 2018. Further, SEBI has vide 
email dated February 26, 2018 made some amendments in the aforesaid SEBI comments letter. 
In view of the above, exchange’s observation letter dated February 09, 2018 stands withdrawn 
and revised observation letter is issued with the following comments on the scheme of 
arrangement: 
 

1. Company to ensure that additional information, if any, submitted after filing the scheme 
with the Stock Exchanges, shall be displayed from the date of receipt of this letter on the 
website of the listed company. 
 

2. Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the circulars. 
 

3. Further, the Company shall include the valuation report in new format in addition to the 
all other documents required under the circular in the explanatory statement or notice or 
proposal accompanying resolution to be passed sent to the shareholders seeking approval 
of the Scheme. 

 
4. Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated 

in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company 
is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT. 

 
5. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT after processing 

and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock exchange. 
Hence the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under 
section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments /observations 
/representations. 

 
Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking 
given in terms of regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-
objection” in terms of regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, so as to enable the 
Company to file the draft scheme with the National Company Law Tribunal. 
  1. 
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Regd. Office: Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051, India 
CIN: U67120MH1992PLC069769 Tel: +91 22 26598235/36 , 26598346, 26598459 /26598458  Web site: www.nseindia .com 

 

Continuation Sheet 

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information 
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any 
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Listing 
Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 
 
The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from February 28, 2018, within which 
the Scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.  
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
 
 
 
Divya Poojari 
Manager 
 
P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following 
URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



81

Annexure - 6A



82

Annexure - 6B



83

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED (“COMPANY” OR 
“TRANSFEROR COMPANY”) AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 2017, EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE 
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION AMONG TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED AND HEMISPHERE 
PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

Background

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company at its meeting held on 13 December 2017, approved the Scheme of 
Arrangement and Reconstruction among Tata Communications Limited and Hemisphere Properties India Limited (“Transferee 
Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to Sections 230 to 232, other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Scheme” or “Draft Scheme”). The Scheme provides for Demerger (as defined in the Scheme) by way 
of reconstruction or splitting up of the Transferor Company by way of transfer of the Surplus Land (as defined in the Scheme) 
of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company 
to the shareholders of the Transferor Company as on Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), followed by transfer of specified 
equity shares allotted to Panatone Group Companies (as defined in the Scheme) in the manner set out in the Scheme and various 
other matters consequential to or otherwise integrally connected with the above, in the manner provided for in the Scheme. 
As per Section 232 (2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the directors explaining effect of arrangement and 
amalgamation on Equity Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs), Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders laying 
out in particular the Share Exchange Ratio (“Report of the Board”) is required to be circulated to the shareholders.

Having regard to the applicability of the aforesaid provisions, the Report of the Board is accordingly being made to comply with 
the provisions of Section 232(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

While considering the Scheme, the Board perused the following documents and also took on record the same –

a)	 Draft Scheme

b)	 A copy of the report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company recommending the Scheme;

c)	 The valuation report(s) dated December 13, 2017 issued by M/s. MSKA & Associates, independent chartered accountants 
(valuers for the Company), which sets out their recommendation on the share entitlement ratio for the Scheme;

d)	 The fairness opinion certificate dated December 13, 2017 issued by M/s. SBI Capital Markets Limited, SEBI registered 
merchant banker, on fairness of the valuation done by the valuers for the Company;

e)	 Certificate dated December 13, 2017 from the statutory auditor of the Transferor Company, as required under Section 
232(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, certifying that the accounting treatment in the Scheme is in is in compliance with all the 
Accounting Standards specified by the Central Government under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
rules framed thereunder or the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, as applicable, and other generally accepted accounting 
principles.

Rationale for the Scheme

In 2002, the Government of India had conducted a disinvestment exercise in respect of 25% of its equity holding in the Transferor 
Company wherein the terms of the bid for the disinvestment required the bidders to take into account the value of the land which 
would remain with the Transferor Company and to exclude the value of certain surplus lands of the Transferor Company. Panatone 
Finvest Limited (“Panatone”), current promoter of the Transferor Company, was the successful bidder in this disinvestment 
process.

Subsequently, a share purchase agreement dated February 6, 2002 was executed between the Government of India and 
amongst others, Panatone and the Transferor Company (“SPA”), for the sale of equity shares of the Transferor Company to 
Panatone and a shareholders’ agreement dated February 13, 2002 was also executed between the Government of India and, 
amongst others, Panatone (“SHA”). The terms and conditions of the SPA and SHA, inter alia¸ required such surplus lands of 
the Transferor Company to be hived off or demerged into a separate company (i.e., in this case, the Transferee Company). 
Further, in accordance with the terms of the said SPA, the SHA and the letter of offer issued by Panatone dated March 27, 2002 
(“Letter of Offer”), Panatone is required to gift, sell or transfer, as the case may be, without further consideration, the shares of 
the Transferee Company, as allotted to Panatone under the Scheme to: (a) the Government of India, to the extent of 25% of 
the Transferee Company’s issued shares; and (b) the shareholders of the Transferor Company who tendered equity shares to 
Panatone pursuant to the Letter of Offer, to the extent their tender was accepted by Panatone, but not exceeding the maximum 
extent of 20% of the total issued capital of the Transferee Company.
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Effect of the Scheme on equity shareholders (promoter shareholders and non-promoter shareholders), employees and 
KMPs of the Transferor Company:

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons:

S. NO CATEGORY OF 
STAKEHOLDER

EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON STAKEHOLDERS

1. Shareholders The Transferor Company only has equity shareholders and does not have any preference 
shareholders.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon vesting of the Surplus Land into the Transferee 
Company and in consideration of the Demerger (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferee 
Company shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, issue and allot to each 
member of the Transferor Company whose name is recorded in the register of members as a 
shareholder of the Transferor Company on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), or his 
legal heirs, executors or administrators or (in case of a corporate entity) its successors, equity 
shares in the Transferee Company in the following manner:

“1 (one) equity shares in the Transferee Company of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten only) 
each credited as fully paid up for every 1 (one) equity share of face value INR 10 (Rupees 
Ten only) each fully paid up held by such member in the Transferor Company (the “Share 
Entitlement Ratio”) as on the Record Date”.

The equity shares issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of this Scheme 
shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee 
Company.

Thus, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the equity shareholders.

Instead, the equity shareholders will benefit from the unlocking of value of the Surplus Land 
by receiving shares in a company which will be listed (viz., Transferee Company) which will 
own the Surplus Land.

2. Promoters (a)	 Promoters except Government of India
	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, such number of shares as are issued and allotted 

to Panatone Group Companies (as defined in the Scheme) by Transferee Company, 
shall, upon Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock exchanges: (i) in 
respect of Panatone owning 25% of the subscribed equity capital of Transferee Company, 
be transferred to the Government of India, in order to give effect to the provisions of the 
SHA and SPA, without any further act or deed; and (ii) in respect of Panatone Group 
Companies owning 20% of the subscribed equity capital of Transferee Company, be 
transferred, at no cost to Panatone Group Companies, and in a proportionate manner, to 
Eligible VSNL Shareholders (as defined in the Scheme). 

	 After such transfer, the Panatone Group Companies  and Associated Companies (as 
defined in the Scheme) will be deemed to have fully discharged all their obligations under 
the Prior Documents (as defined in the Scheme) in respect of the transfer of shares of 
the ‘resulting company’ (as defined in the SHA and SPA, i.e., separate entity formed 
for the purpose of demerger of surplus lands by way of court approved scheme of 
arrangement), which is the Transferee Company to the Government of India and Eligible 
VSNL Shareholders respectively.

(b)	 Government of India
	 The Government of India holds 26.12% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the 

Transferor Company.

	 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such number 
of shares as are issued and allotted to Panatone Group Companies by the Transferee 
Company, in respect of Panatone owning 25% of the subscribed equity capital of the 
Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their allotment to Panatone and upon the 
Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock exchanges, be transferred to 
the Government of India, in order to give effect to the provisions of the SPA and SHA, 
without any further act or deed.

3. Non-Promoter 
Shareholders

Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.
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S. NO CATEGORY OF 
STAKEHOLDER

EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON STAKEHOLDERS

4. Key Managerial 
Personnel and 
Directors

The key managerial personnel of the Transferor Company (“KMPs”) and directors shall 
continue as key managerial personnel and directors respectively of the Transferor Company 
after effectiveness of the Scheme.

KMPs and Directors other than Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:
Such KMPs/directors who are shareholders of the Applicant Company will be allotted shares 
of Transferee Company, like the other shareholders of the Transferor Company. Please refer 
to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.

Other than such allotment of shares, the KMPs/directors are not affected pursuant to the 
Scheme.

Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:
Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is a Director of the Transferor Company and is also the Chairman 
and Managing Director of Hemisphere Properties India Limited. Being a KPM of the Transferee 
Company and a Director of the Transferor Company, Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is deemed to 
be interested as per Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Creditors Pursuant to the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors, either secured or 
unsecured, of the Transferor Company. The liability of the Transferor Company towards its 
creditors shall not undergo any change pursuant to the Scheme.

6. Depositors Not Applicable - The Transferor Company does not have any Depositors.
7. Debenture holders The Transferor Company has issued listed and unlisted non–convertible debentures. The 

Scheme will have no bearing on these debenture holders.
8. Deposit Trustee Not Applicable
9. Debenture trustee NIL
10. Employee The Scheme in no manner whatsoever affects the terms and conditions of employment of the 

employees of the Transferor Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of Tata Communications Limited

Renuka Ramnath 
Chairperson, Board of Directors

Mumbai
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED (“COMPANY” 
OR “TRANSFEREE COMPANY”) AT ITS MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 13, 2017, EXPLAINING 
THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION AMONG TATA COMMUNICATIONS 
LIMITED (“TRANSFEROR COMPANY”) AND HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE 
SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND 
NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

Background

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company at its meeting held on December 13, 2017, approved the Scheme of 
Arrangement and Reconstruction among Tata Communications Limited (“Transferor Company”) and Hemisphere Properties 
India Limited (“Company” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to Sections 
230 to 232, other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and Explanation 5 to Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961 and other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Scheme” or “Draft Scheme”). The Scheme provides for 
Demerger (as defined in the Scheme) by way of reconstruction or splitting up of the Transferor Company by way of transfer of the 
Surplus Land (as defined in the Scheme) of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company and the consequent issue of 
equity shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company as on Record Date (as defined in the 
Scheme), followed by transfer of specified equity shares allotted to Panatone Group Companies (as defined in the Scheme) in 
the manner set out in the Scheme and various other matters consequential to or otherwise integrally connected with the above, in 
the manner provided for in the Scheme. As per Section 232 (2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the Directors 
explaining effect of arrangement and amalgamation on Equity Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs), Promoters 
and Non-Promoter Shareholders laying out in particular the Share Exchange Ratio (“Report of the Board”) is required to be 
circulated to the shareholders.

Having regard to the applicability of the aforesaid provisions, the Report of the Board is accordingly being made to comply with 
the provisions of Section 232(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

While considering the Scheme, the Board perused the following documents and also took on record the same –

a)	 Draft Scheme

b)	 The valuation report(s) dated December 13, 2017 issued by M/s. MSKA & Associates, independent chartered accountants 
(valuers for the Company), which sets out their recommendation on the share entitlement ratio for the Scheme.

Rationale for the Scheme

In 2002, the Government of India had conducted a disinvestment exercise in respect of 25% of its equity holding in the Transferor 
Company wherein the terms of the bid for the disinvestment required the bidders to take into account the value of the land which 
would remain with the Transferor Company and to exclude the value of certain surplus lands of the Transferor Company. Panatone 
Finvest Limited (“Panatone”), current promoter of the Transferor Company, was the successful bidder in this disinvestment 
process.

Subsequently, a share purchase agreement dated February 6, 2002 was executed between the Government of India and 
amongst others, Panatone and the Transferor Company (“SPA”), for the sale of equity shares of the Transferor Company to 
Panatone and a shareholders’ agreement dated February 13, 2002 was also executed between the Government of India and, 
amongst others, Panatone (“SHA”). The terms and conditions of the SPA and SHA, inter alia¸ required such surplus lands of 
the Transferor Company to be hived off or demerged into a separate company (i.e., in this case, the Transferee Company). 
Further, in accordance with the terms of the said SPA, the SHA and the letter of offer issued by Panatone dated March 27, 2002 
(“Letter of Offer”), Panatone is required to gift, sell or transfer, as the case may be, without further consideration, the shares 
of the Transferee Company, as allotted to Panatone under the Scheme to: (a) the Government of India, to the extent of 25% of 
the Transferee Company’s issued shares; and (b) the shareholders of the Transferor Company who tendered equity shares to 
Panatone pursuant to the Letter of Offer, to the extent their tender was accepted by Panatone, but not exceeding the maximum 
extent of 20% of the total issued capital of the Transferee Company.
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Effect of the Scheme on equity shareholders (promoter shareholders and non-promoter shareholders), employees and 
KMPs of the Transferee Company:

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons:

S. NO CATEGORY OF 
STAKEHOLDER

EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON STAKEHOLDERS

1. Shareholders The Transferee Company only has equity shareholders and does not have any preference 
shareholders.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon vesting of the Surplus Land into the 
Transferee Company and in consideration of the Demerger (as defined in the Scheme), 
the Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, 
issue and allot to each member of the Transferor Company whose name is recorded in the 
register of members as a shareholder of the Transferor Company on the Record Date, or 
his legal heirs, executors or administrators or (in case of a corporate entity) its successors, 
equity shares in the Transferee Company in the following manner:

 “1 (one) equity shares in the Transferee Company of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten only) 
each credited as fully paid up for every 1 (one) equity share of face value INR 10 (Rupees 
Ten only) each fully paid up held by such member in the Transferor Company (the “Share 
Entitlement Ratio”) as on the Record Date”.

The equity shares issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of this Scheme 
shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee 
Company.

The existing issued and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company shall stand 
cancelled without any further act or deed immediately following the issuance of shares by 
the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company pursuant to and 
in accordance with provisions of the Scheme.

Further, the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company will be increased to  
INR100,000,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand Crores), divided into equity share capital 
of Rs. 90,000,000,000/- (Rupees Nine Thousand Crores), comprising of 9,000,000,000 
(Nine Hundred Crores) equity shares of INR10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and preference 
share capital of INR10,000,000,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores), comprising of 
1,000,000,000 (One Hundred Crores) preference shares of INR10/- (Rupees Ten only) 
each, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, pursuant to the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the shares of Transferee Company are proposed to be listed on 
the stock exchange.

The Scheme is in the best interests of the shareholders of the Transferee Company.
2. Promoters Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, the existing issued and paid–up share capital of the 

Transferee Company shall stand cancelled without any further act or deed, immediately 
following the issuance of shares by Transferee Company to the shareholders of the 
Transferor Company.

Government of India
The Government of India holds 51.12% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the 
Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as an integral part of the Scheme, such number 
of shares as are issued and allotted to Panatone Group Companies by the Transferee 
Company, in respect of Panatone owning 25% of the subscribed equity capital of the 
Transferor Company, shall, subsequent to their allotment to Panatone and upon the 
Transferee Company being listed on the recognized stock exchanges, be transferred to 
the Government of India, in order to give effect to the provisions of the SPA and SHA, 
without any further act or deed.

3. Non-Promoter 
Shareholders

Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.
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S. NO CATEGORY OF 
STAKEHOLDER

EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON STAKEHOLDERS

4. Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) and 
Directors

KMPs and Directors other than Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:
Such KMPs / directors who are shareholders of the Transferor Company will be allotted 
shares of Transferee Company, like the other shareholders of the Transferor Company. 
Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.

Other than such allotment of shares, the KMPs/directors are not affected pursuant to the 
Scheme.

Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari:
Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is a Director of the Transferor Company and is also the Chairman 
and Managing Director of the Transferee Company. Being a KMP of the Transferee 
Company and a director of the Transferor Company, Mr. Saurabh Kumar Tiwari is deemed 
to be interested as per Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Creditors Pursuant to the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors, either secured or 
unsecured, of the Transferee Company. The liability of the Transferee Company towards 
its creditors shall not undergo any change pursuant to the Scheme.

6. Depositors Not Applicable - The Transferee Company does not have any Depositors.
7. Debenture holders Not Applicable
8. Deposit Trustee Not Applicable
9. Debenture trustee Not Applicable
10. Employee The Transferee Company does not have any employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of Hemisphere Properties India Limited

Saurabh Kumar Tiwari 
Chairman and Managing Director

New Delhi
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` in crores

Note
 As at 

31 December 2017
(Unaudited) 

 As at 
31 March 2017

(Audited) 
A ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 3,438.03                     3,392.51          
(b) Capital work-in-progress 415.81                        431.19             
(c) Investment property 5 241.37                        243.33             
(d) Other intangible assets 6 388.33                        361.10             
(e) Intangible assets under development 52.42                          65.29               
(f) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7A 4,048.57                     4,566.92          
(ii) Loans 8 -                              0.12                 
(iii) Other financial assets 9A 103.70                        298.31             

(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 147.80                        92.50               
(h) Advance tax (net) 1,567.81                     1,406.31          
(i) Other non-current assets 10A 251.25                        250.44             

Total non-current assets 10,655.09                  11,108.02       
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 39.59                          14.83               
(b) Financial assets

(i) Other investments 7B 121.26                        799.30             
(ii) Trade receivables 11 1,351.06                     806.98             
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 95.89                          86.93               
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 13 15.98                          14.86               
(v) Other financial assets 9B 154.20                        118.61             

(c) Other current assets 10B 107.48                        192.43             
1,885.46                    2,033.94         

Assets classified as held for sale 14 2.77                            3.32                 
Total current assets 1,888.23                    2,037.26         
Total assets 12,543.32                  13,145.28       

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 285.00                        285.00             
(b) Other equity 16 8,321.06                     8,970.21          

Total equity 8,606.06                    9,255.21         
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 17A 155.00                        155.00             
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18A 26.16                          42.70               

(b) Provisions 19A 228.98                        228.74             
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20A 437.37                        439.97             

Total non-current liabilities 847.51                        866.41             
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 17B 390.99                        582.25             
(ii) Trade payables 21 1,273.41                     1,174.15          
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18B 575.73                        506.95             

(b) Provisions 19B 32.92                          32.15               
(c) Current tax liability (net) 356.20                        255.47             
(d) Other current liabilities 20B 460.50                        472.69             

Total current liabilities 3,089.75                    3,023.66         

Total equity and liabilities 12,543.32                  13,145.28       

For Tata Communications Limited

PRATIBHA K. ADVANI
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
Date: 29 March 2018

Particulars

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

` in crores

Note
 As at 

31 December 2017
(Unaudited) 

 As at 
31 March 2017

(Audited) 
A ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 3,438.03                     3,392.51          
(b) Capital work-in-progress 415.81                        431.19             
(c) Investment property 5 241.37                        243.33             
(d) Other intangible assets 6 388.33                        361.10             
(e) Intangible assets under development 52.42                          65.29               
(f) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7A 4,048.57                     4,566.92          
(ii) Loans 8 -                              0.12                 
(iii) Other financial assets 9A 103.70                        298.31             

(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 147.80                        92.50               
(h) Advance tax (net) 1,567.81                     1,406.31          
(i) Other non-current assets 10A 251.25                        250.44             

Total non-current assets 10,655.09                  11,108.02       
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 39.59                          14.83               
(b) Financial assets

(i) Other investments 7B 121.26                        799.30             
(ii) Trade receivables 11 1,351.06                     806.98             
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 95.89                          86.93               
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 13 15.98                          14.86               
(v) Other financial assets 9B 154.20                        118.61             

(c) Other current assets 10B 107.48                        192.43             
1,885.46                    2,033.94         

Assets classified as held for sale 14 2.77                            3.32                 
Total current assets 1,888.23                    2,037.26         
Total assets 12,543.32                  13,145.28       

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 285.00                        285.00             
(b) Other equity 16 8,321.06                     8,970.21          

Total equity 8,606.06                    9,255.21         
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 17A 155.00                        155.00             
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18A 26.16                          42.70               

(b) Provisions 19A 228.98                        228.74             
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20A 437.37                        439.97             

Total non-current liabilities 847.51                        866.41             
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 17B 390.99                        582.25             
(ii) Trade payables 21 1,273.41                     1,174.15          
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18B 575.73                        506.95             

(b) Provisions 19B 32.92                          32.15               
(c) Current tax liability (net) 356.20                        255.47             
(d) Other current liabilities 20B 460.50                        472.69             

Total current liabilities 3,089.75                    3,023.66         

Total equity and liabilities 12,543.32                  13,145.28       

For Tata Communications Limited

PRATIBHA K. ADVANI
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
Date: 29 March 2018

Particulars

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
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` in crores

Note

 For the nine 
months period 

ended 31 
December 2017

(Unaudited) 

 For the nine 
months period 

ended 31 
December 2016

(Unaudited) 

 For the year 
ended 31 March 

2017
(Audited) 

INCOME

I Revenue from telecommunications services 3,811.47              3,787.66              5,068.15              
II Other income 22 205.65                 597.17                 (16.91)                  

III Total income (I + II) 4,017.12              4,384.83              5,051.24              

IV EXPENSES

Network and transmission 23 1,415.38              1,441.74              1,923.39              
Employee benefits 24 656.31                 567.56                 757.09                 
Operating and other expenses 25 896.24                 838.01                 1,194.48              
Finance cost 26 31.42                   23.43                   30.68                    
Depreciation and amortisation 4,5,6 592.16                 567.02                 764.58                 

Total expenses 3,591.51              3,437.76              4,670.22              

V Profit before exceptional items and taxes (III-IV) 425.61                 947.07                 381.02                 

VI Exceptional items
Net gain on sale of partial interest in subsidiary 27(a) -                        1,706.67              1,696.22              
Provision for contractual obligation 27(b) (185.59)                -                        (872.01)                
Provision for contingencies 27(c) (15.44)                  -                        -                        
Staff cost optimisation 27(d) -                        -                        (0.39)                     

VII Profit before tax (V+VI) 224.58                 2,653.74              1,204.84              

VIII Tax expense
(a) Current tax 199.26                 645.35                 602.50                 
(b) Deferred tax - (credit)/ charge (50.02)                  53.70                   (87.49)                  

IX Profit for the period/ year (VII - VIII) 75.34                   1,954.69              689.83                 

X Other comprehensive income
a. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

 (i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (8.75)                    (39.56)                  (33.15)                  
 (ii) Equity instruments through other comprehensive    
     income 28(a) (516.12)                (166.71)                (166.23)                

b. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 6.19                      13.69                   11.36                    

Total other comprehensive income (a+b) (518.68)                (192.58)                (188.02)                

XI Total comprehensive income for the period/ year (IX+X) (443.34)                1,762.11              501.81                 

XII Earnings per equity share
Number of equity shares with face value of ` 10 each (in crores) 28.50                   28.50                   28.50                    
Basic/ Diluted (in `) 2.64                     68.59                   24.20                   

For Tata Communications Limited

PRATIBHA K. ADVANI
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
Date: 29 March 2018

Particulars

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

` in crores

Note

 For the nine 
months period 

ended 31 
December 2017

(Unaudited) 

 For the nine 
months period 

ended 31 
December 2016

(Unaudited) 

 For the year 
ended 31 March 

2017
(Audited) 

INCOME

I Revenue from telecommunications services 3,811.47              3,787.66              5,068.15              
II Other income 22 205.65                 597.17                 (16.91)                  

III Total income (I + II) 4,017.12              4,384.83              5,051.24              

IV EXPENSES

Network and transmission 23 1,415.38              1,441.74              1,923.39              
Employee benefits 24 656.31                 567.56                 757.09                 
Operating and other expenses 25 896.24                 838.01                 1,194.48              
Finance cost 26 31.42                   23.43                   30.68                    
Depreciation and amortisation 4,5,6 592.16                 567.02                 764.58                 

Total expenses 3,591.51              3,437.76              4,670.22              

V Profit before exceptional items and taxes (III-IV) 425.61                 947.07                 381.02                 

VI Exceptional items
Net gain on sale of partial interest in subsidiary 27(a) -                        1,706.67              1,696.22              
Provision for contractual obligation 27(b) (185.59)                -                        (872.01)                
Provision for contingencies 27(c) (15.44)                  -                        -                        
Staff cost optimisation 27(d) -                        -                        (0.39)                     

VII Profit before tax (V+VI) 224.58                 2,653.74              1,204.84              

VIII Tax expense
(a) Current tax 199.26                 645.35                 602.50                 
(b) Deferred tax - (credit)/ charge (50.02)                  53.70                   (87.49)                  

IX Profit for the period/ year (VII - VIII) 75.34                   1,954.69              689.83                 

X Other comprehensive income
a. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

 (i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (8.75)                    (39.56)                  (33.15)                  
 (ii) Equity instruments through other comprehensive    
     income 28(a) (516.12)                (166.71)                (166.23)                

b. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 6.19                      13.69                   11.36                    

Total other comprehensive income (a+b) (518.68)                (192.58)                (188.02)                

XI Total comprehensive income for the period/ year (IX+X) (443.34)                1,762.11              501.81                 

XII Earnings per equity share
Number of equity shares with face value of ` 10 each (in crores) 28.50                   28.50                   28.50                    
Basic/ Diluted (in `) 2.64                     68.59                   24.20                   

For Tata Communications Limited

PRATIBHA K. ADVANI
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
Date: 29 March 2018

Particulars

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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` in crores
 For the nine months 

period ended 
 For the nine months 

period ended 
 For the year 

ended 
 31 December 2017

(Unaudited) 
 31 December 2016

(Unaudited) 
 31 March 2017

(Audited) 

A Net cash from operating activities 188.15                          610.33                         970.93                    

B Net cash from / (used in) investing activities 234.32                          (509.03)                       (864.51)                   

C Net cash used in financing activities (413.51)                         (96.90)                          (90.35)                     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 8.96                              4.40                             16.07                      

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period/ year 86.93                            70.86                           70.86                      

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year 95.89                            75.26                           86.93                      

For Tata Communciations Limited

PRATIBHA K. ADVANI
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
Date: 29 March 2018

 TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
CONDENSED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

 Particulars 
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
1. Corporate information 

TATA Communications Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated on 19 March 1986. The 
Government of India vide its letter No. G-25015/6/86OC dated 27 March 1986, transferred all assets 
and liabilities of the Overseas Communications Service (“OCS”) (part of the Department of 
Telecommunications, Ministry of Communications) as appearing in the Balance sheet as at 31 March 
1986 to the Company with effect from 1 April 1986. During the financial year 2007-08, the Company 
changed its name from Videsh Sanchar Nigam Limited to Tata Communications Limited and the fresh 
certificate of incorporation consequent upon the change of name was issued by the Registrar of 
Companies, Maharashtra on 28 January 2008. 

The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is at VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400 001. 

The Company offers international and national voice and data transmission services, selling and 
leasing of bandwidth on undersea cable systems, internet connectivity services and other value-added 
services comprising unified conferencing and collaboration services, managed hosting, mobile global 
roaming and signalling services, transponder lease, television uplinking and other services. 

2. Basis of preparation 
 

The Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Condensed Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 and other explanatory notes (“financial 
information”) represent the standalone financial information of the Company  and have been 
prepared to comply, in all material respects, with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.  
 
The Company’s management had previously issued its audited financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2017 (‘Annual financial statements’) on 4 May 2017 that were prepared in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.  As part of approval process 
for demerger of surplus land with the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), the financial 
information as at 31 December 2017 and for the nine months period ended on that date, is proposed 
to be sent to the NCLT, creditors, shareholders and other statutory authorities, in accordance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
The financial results of the Company, for the nine months period ended 31 December 2017 
and  31 December 2016, were reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting dated 
8 February 2018 and 23 January 2017, respectively.  
 
These compiled financial information are not a complete set of financial statements prepared as per 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 or the requirements of the Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial 
Reporting”. 

 

 



119

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
3. Significant accounting policies, accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements 

The accounting policies, accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements adopted in the 
compilation of these financial information are consistent with those followed in the preparation of 
the Company’s  latest Annual financial statements. 
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Note 7. Investments ` in crores

As at As at
31 December 2017 31 March 2017

A. Non-current investments
a. Investment (at cost)
i. In subsidiaries - fully paid equity shares (Unquoted)

Tata Communications Lanka Limited 13,661,422                               7.41 13,661,422         7.41                              
Tata Communications International Pte. Ltd. * 191,102,862                    2,521.15 191,102,862       2,521.15                      

Tata Communications Transformation Services Limited 500,000                                    0.50 500,000              0.50                              
Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited 987,091,784                    1,513.05 754,457,415       1,398.06                      
Tata Communications Collaboration Services Private Limited 20,000                                      0.02 20,000                 0.02                              

4,042.13                      3,927.14                      
ii. In subsidiaries - fully paid preference shares (Unquoted)

Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited                                    -   355,000,000       114.99                         
-                                114.99                         

iii. In associates - fully paid shares (Unquoted)
STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited - Equity shares 2,600              @ 2,600                   @
Smart ICT Services Private Limited (GIFT) - Preference shares 271,226          0.27                         232,874              0.23                              
Smart ICT Services Private Limited (GIFT) - Equity shares 12,000            0.01                         12,000                 0.01                              

0.28                              0.24                              
Total (a) 4,042.41                      4,042.37                      

b. Investment (at fair value through other comprehensive income)
i. Fully paid equity shares (Unquoted)

Tata Teleservices Ltd. * 598,213,926  -                           439,863,622       515.53                         
Others 297,134          6.16                              297,134              6.16                              

6.16                              521.69                         
ii. Fully paid equity shares (Quoted)

Pendrell Corporation                               -   680,373              2.86                              

-                                2.86                              
Total (b) 6.16                              524.55                         

Total (a+b) 4,048.57                      4,566.92                      

B. Current investments
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (mutual funds) 121.26                         799.30                         

@ represent amount less than ` 50,000

 No of shares  

* Equity investments on these companies are subject to certain restrictions on transfer as per the terms of individual contractual agreements

 No of shares  Particulars
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Note 8. Loans ` in crores

As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

A. Loan to related parties
(Unsecured, considered good)                                   -                      0.12 

                                  -                      0.12 

Note 9. Other financial assets ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

A. Non-current
Pension contributions recoverable from Government of India (net)                               7.44                    7.44 

Advance for litigations - unsecured                               8.16             1,058.00 
Less: Provision for contractual obligations                                   -                (872.01)

                              8.16                185.99 
Guarantee fees receivable from subsidiaries                             26.16                  42.70 
Security deposits
  (i) Unsecured, considered good                             61.58                  61.81 
  (ii) Unsecured, considered doubtful                               2.80                    2.80 
Less: allowance for doubtful security deposits                             (2.80)                   (2.80)

                            61.58                  61.81 

Other advances /receivables - unsecured, considered good                               0.36                    0.37 

Total (A)                           103.70                298.31 

B. Current
Interest receivable - unsecured, considered good                               0.52                    0.82 

Advances to employees - unsecured, considered good                               0.04                    0.05 

Guarantee fees receivable from subsidiaries                             21.59                  24.20 
Security deposits 
  (i) Unsecured, considered good                             15.18                    6.76 
  (ii) Unsecured, considered doubtful                               0.99                         -   
Less: allowance for doubtful security deposits (0.99)                                                    -   

15.18                           6.76                   
Advances to related parties - unsecured, considered good                           112.48                  82.24 

Other advances
  (i) Unsecured, considered good                               4.39                    4.54 
  (ii) Unsecured, considered doubtful                               0.85                    0.85 
Less: allowance for doubtful advances                             (0.85)                   (0.85)

                              4.39                    4.54 

Total (B)                           154.20                118.61 

Total (A + B)                           257.90                416.92 

Particulars

Particulars
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Note 10. Other assets ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
A. Non-current

Amount paid under protest                             25.61                  25.58 

Prepaid expenses - unsecured, considered good                           174.01                178.37 

License fees recoverable from Government of India                               0.64                    0.64 

Capital advances
  (i) Unsecured, considered good                               5.00                    2.23 
  (ii) Unsecured, considered doubtful                               6.01                    6.01 
Less: allowance for doubtful advances                             (6.01)                   (6.01)

                              5.00                    2.23 
Other advances /receivables
  (i) Unsecured, considered good                             45.99                  43.62 
  (ii) Unsecured, considered doubtful                               0.09                    0.09 
Less: allowance for doubtful advances                             (0.09)                   (0.09)

                            45.99                  43.62 

Total (A)                           251.25                250.44 

B. Current
Prepaid expenses  - unsecured, considered good                             91.78                  91.60 

Balance with government authorities  - unsecured, considered good
    Service tax recoverable (net)                                   -                    76.70 
    Others                               0.01                    0.01 

Advances to employees
  (i) Unsecured, considered good                               4.30                    1.88 
  (ii) Unsecured, considered doubtful                               0.62                    0.62 
Less: allowance for doubtful advances                             (0.62)                   (0.62)

                              4.30                    1.88 

Advance to contractors and vendors
  (i) Unsecured, considered good                               1.49                    4.09 
  (ii) Unsecured, considered doubtful                               0.24                    0.24 
Less: allowance for doubtful advances                             (0.24)                   (0.24)

                              1.49                    4.09 
Other advances                               9.90                  18.15 

Total (B)                           107.48                192.43 

Total (A + B)                           358.73                442.87 

Note 11. Trade receivables ` in crores
 As at  As at 

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
 
Considered good                       1,351.06                806.98 
Considered doubtful                           244.72                210.06 

                      1,595.78             1,017.04 
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables                         (244.72)              (210.06)

                      1,351.06                806.98 

Particulars

Particulars
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Note 12. Cash and cash equivalents ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

Cash on hand                               0.02                    0.05 
Cheques on hand                               0.19                    0.04 
Remittances in transit                                   -                      4.23 
Current accounts with scheduled banks                             85.88                  72.61 
Deposit accounts with scheduled banks                               9.80                  10.00 

                            95.89                  86.93 

Note 13. Other bank balances ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

Unpaid dividend accounts                               0.58                    0.45 
Restricted bank balances                             15.40                  14.41 

                            15.98                  14.86 

Note 14. Assets classified as held for sale ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

Staff quarters                               2.32                    2.87 
Land at Guldhar Repeater Station                               0.45                    0.45 

                              2.77                    3.32 

Note 15. Equity share capital ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

(a) Authorised
400,000,000 (31 March 2017: 400,000,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each                           400.00                400.00 

  
(b) Issued, subscribed and paid up

285,000,000 (31 March 2017: 285,000,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each, fully 
paid up

285.00                         285.00              

Note 16. Other equity ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
(a) Capital reserve                           206.06                206.06 

(b) Debenture redemption reserve                             38.75                  38.75 

(c) Securities premium                           725.01                725.01 

(d) General reserve                       5,342.00             5,342.00 

(e) Retained earning                       2,974.61             3,105.08 

(f) Other comprehensive income                         (965.37)              (446.69)
                      8,321.06             8,970.21 

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars



125

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Note 17. Borrowings ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
A. Non-current

(a) Secured debentures
Taxable rated non-convertible redeemable debentures                           550.00                550.00 

 50, 11.25% rated debentures of face value ` 10 lakhs each                               5.00                    5.00 
(b) Unsecured debentures

Taxable rated non-convertible redeemable debentures
   1,500, 9.85% rated debentures of face value ` 10 lakhs each                           150.00                150.00 
Total (A)                           155.00                155.00 

B. Current
Short term loan from bank (Unsecured)
Buyers' credit                           390.99                582.25 
Total (B)                           390.99                582.25 

Total (A + B)                           545.99                737.25 

Note 18. Other financial liabilities ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
A. Non-current

Obligation for financial guarantee                             26.16                  42.70 

Total (A)                             26.16                  42.70 

B. Current
Interest accrued but not due on loans from banks                               8.81                  11.82 

Licence fees payable                             96.83                  57.69 

Deposits from customers and contractors                             41.38                  43.07 

Government of India account                             20.57                  20.57 
Unpaid dividend                               0.58                    0.45 

Capital creditors                           371.74                344.35 

Fair value of foreign exchange forward contract                             13.17                    2.95 

Obligation for financial guarantee                             21.59                  24.20 

Other liabilities                               1.06                    1.85 
Total (B)                           575.73                506.95 

Total (A + B)                           601.89                549.65 

Note 19. Provisions ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
A. Non-current

Provisions for employee benefits
    Provision for compensated absences                             74.12                  67.46 

    Provision for post employment medical benefits                           116.47                113.72 

    Provision for pension                             33.81                  31.59 

    Provision for gratuity                               0.84                    6.45 

Provision for contingencies                               3.74                    9.52 

Total (A)                           228.98                228.74 

B. Current
Provision for employee benefits
    Provision for compensated absences                               7.35                    6.58 

Provision for others                             25.57                  25.57 
Total (B)                             32.92                  32.15 

Total (A + B)                           261.90                260.89 

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Note 20. Other liabilities ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
A. Non-current

Deferred revenue                           421.07                412.73 

Accrued employee benefits                             16.30                  27.24 

Total (A)                           437.37                439.97 

B. Current
Deferred revenues and advance received from customers                           177.19                316.50 

Network and transmission expenses payable                             17.04                    7.40 

Accrued payroll                           155.02                121.24 

Statutory liabilities
TDS payable                             18.21                  13.65 
Others                             20.86                         -   

Other liabilities                             72.18                  13.90 
Total (B)                           460.50                472.69 

Total (A + B)                           897.87                912.66 

Note 21. Trade payables ` in crores
As at As at

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
Creditors for goods and services                       1,272.54             1,173.14 

Other payables                               0.87                    1.01 

                       1,273.41             1,174.15 

Particulars
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Note 22. Other income ` in crores

For the nine months 
period ended

For the nine months 
period ended

For the year 
ended

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 March 2017

Interest Income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
       (i) Bank deposits 0.85                              1.16                              1.42                       
       (ii) Interest on non-convertible debentures from investment
             in subsidiary -                                19.01                            19.01
       (ii) Others 31.64                            34.13                            51.84
Dividend income from investment carried at cost 34.53                            25.27                            25.27                     
Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (net) 27.57                            49.85                            61.73                     
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 3.66                              1.37                              (0.18)                      
Rent 97.13                            79.91                            111.18                   
Foreign exchange (loss) (net) (45.03)                           (4.83)                             (0.89)                      
Provisions/ liabilities no longer required - written back -                                -                                11.43                     
Interest on income tax refund 3.93                              5.29                              16.11                     
Fair value gain on investments in subsidiary (net) -                                282.88                          (446.47)                  
Guarantee income from subsidiaries 21.45                            27.41                            37.52                     
Shared service fees from subsidiaries/associate 15.24                            64.83                            85.08                     
Others 14.68                            10.89                            10.04

205.65                         597.17                          (16.91)                    

Note 23. Network and transmission ` in crores
For the nine months 

period ended
For the nine months 

period ended
For the year 

ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 March 2017

Charges for use of transmission facilities 1,236.11                      1,277.47                       1,693.78                
Royalty and license fee to Department of Telecommunications 143.90                          140.32                          195.50                   
Rent of landline and satellite channels 35.37                            23.95                            34.11                     

                       1,415.38                        1,441.74                 1,923.39 

Note 24. Employee benefits ` in crores
For the nine months 

period ended
For the nine months 

period ended
For the year 

ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 March 2017

Salaries and related costs 601.56                          513.26                          684.81                   
Contributions to provident, gratuity and other funds 25.99                            22.87                            30.65                     
Staff welfare expenses 28.76                            31.43                            41.63                     

                          656.31                           567.56                     757.09 

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Note 25. Operating and other expenses ` in crores
For the nine months 

period ended
For the nine months 

period ended
For the year 

ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 March 2017

Consumption of stores 0.12                              -                                0.09                       
Light and power (net of recoveries) 77.28                            74.04                            100.29                   
Repairs and maintenance:
        - Buildings 20.91                            22.00                            32.91                     
        - Plant and machinery 260.83                          273.15                          351.86                   
        - Others 0.29                              (0.45)                             0.52                       
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 34.65                            9.77                              7.51                       
Allowance for doubtful advances 0.99                              0.34                              (0.08)                      
Rent 55.63                            43.09                            60.50                     
Rates and taxes 6.74                              11.06                            9.42                       
Travelling 23.04                            24.69                            31.48                     
Telephone 5.07                              10.15                            15.34                     
Printing, postage and stationery 2.45                              2.60                              3.61                       
Legal and professional fees 56.17                            24.25                            110.87                   
Advertising and publicity 21.20                            20.80                            32.04                     
Commissions 15.88                            16.73                            23.48                     
Services rendered by agencies 206.82                          203.31                          270.66                   
Insurance  4.84                              4.76                              6.37                       
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 7.35                              10.86                            14.66                     
Other expenses 95.98                            86.86                            122.95                   

896.24                         838.01                          1,194.48                

Note 26. Finance costs ` in crores
For the nine months 

period ended
For the nine months 

period ended
For the year 

ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 March 2017

Interest on loans 6.58                              8.42                              10.48                     
Interest on debentures 11.56                            11.56                            15.34                     
Other interest 13.24                            11.57                            16.90                     
Less: Interest capitalised 0.04                              (8.12)                             (12.04)                    

31.42                            23.43                            30.68                     

Particulars

Particulars
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

27. Exceptional items 

a) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company had completed sale of 74% shareholding 
in Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited (“TCDC”) to Singapore Technologies 
Telemedia (“ST Telemedia”) for a cash consideration of ` 1,796.78 crores resulting into a gain 
on sale of ` 1,696.22 crores. The Company has considered the remaining investment to be an 
investment in associate as it retains an equity share exceeding 20% with a right to appoint two 
directors on their Board. In April 2017, the name of TCDC was changed to STT Global Data 
Centers India Private Limited. 
 

b) During the year ended 31 March 2017, as per the contractual obligation under the inter-se 
agreement, the Company paid an advance of ` 1,058.00 crores to Tata Sons Limited, towards 
its share of NTT Docomo arbitration award, against which the Company provided ` 872.01 
crores during the year ended 31 March 2017, as per the Delhi High Court order dated 28 April 
2017. During the nine months period ended 31 December 2017, the Company has made an 
additional provision of ` 185.59 crores. Further, during the current period, Tata Sons Limited 
settled the advances, the Company recorded 158,350,304 equity shares at its fair value of ` Nil 
and recognised net interest income of ` 29.72 crores. 
 

c) During the nine months period ended 31 December 2017, the Company has provided ` 15.44 
crores as provision for contingencies, for certain legal matters that have attained finality based 
on the judgment of respective court. 

 
d) During the year ended 31 March 2017, as part of its initiative to enhance the long-term 

efficiency of the business, the Company undertook organisational changes to align to the 
Company current and prospective business requirements. These changes involved certain 
positions in the Company becoming redundant and the Company incurred one-time charge of  
` 0.39 crores. 

 

28. Significant transactions/ new developments 

a) The Company has investment in the equity shares of Tata Teleservices Limited (“TTSL”) which 
is recognised at fair value through other comprehensive income. Based on the recent 
developments in TTSL, the Company has recognised a loss of ` 515.53 crores in other 
comprehensive income during the nine months period ended 31 December  2017. 
 

b) The Company is in exploratory discussions with TTSL and Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) 
Limited regarding the potential acquisition of its enterprise business which has been 
communicated to the stock exchanges on 12 October 2017. 

 
c) In 2002, the Government of India conducted a disinvestment of its 25% shareholding in the 

Company, then known as Videsh Sanchar Nigam Ltd, wherein the terms of the bid required the 
bidders to take into account value of the lands that would  remain with the Company and to 
exclude the value of certain surplus lands of the Company. Upon Panatone Finvest Limited 
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(“Panatone”) emerging as the successful bidder in the disinvestment process, a Shareholders’ 
Agreement (SHA) and Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) were entered between Government of 
India, and amongst others, Panatone. Pursuant thereto, in order to give effect to the terms 
and conditions of the SPA and SHA which, inter alia¸ required such surplus lands to be hived 
off or demerged into a separate company, the Company filed the Scheme of Arrangement and 
Reconstruction (the “Scheme”) with Hemisphere Properties India Limited (“HPIL”) for the 
transfer of surplus lands with BSE Ltd (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (“NSE”) 
on December 22, 2017. The Company has received Observation Letters / No Objection Letters 
from BSE and NSE dated February 27, 2018 and February 28, 2018 respectively which do not 
contain any adverse remarks.   
 

The Scheme is subject to the approval of shareholders and statutory authorities including the 
NCLT and Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
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Annexure - 11

HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST  DECEMBER , 2017

Amount in INR

NOTE NO. AS AT AS AT
31.12.2017 31.03.2017

A.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1) Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital 2                 500,000                                                                                                                                                                         500,000            
b) Reserves and Surplus 3                 (738,800)          (495,615)          

(238,800)                                                                                   4,385                
2) Non-Current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 4                 10,000,000     10,000,000       

10,000,000     10,000,000       
3) Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities 5                 2,000,000       1,623,000         
2,000,000       1,623,000         

TOTAL 11,761,200     11,627,385       

B.  ASSETS

1) Non-current Assets
(a) Fixed assets
Intangible Assets
     (i) Capital work-in-progress 6                 5,550,000       3,900,000         

5,550,000       3,900,000         

2)      Current Assets
a) Cash and Bank Balance 7                 5,823,041       7,484,913         
b) Short Term Loans and Advances 8                                                                                                                 388,159          242,472            

6,211,200       7,727,385         

TOTAL 11,761,200     11,627,385       
-                  -                   

Significant Accounting Policies 1
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
AUDITORS' REPORT Hemisphere Properties India Limited
Compiled from Books of Accounts Produced before us
For AEPN & Associates
Chartered Accountants
  FRN: 05842N Shiba P. Mohapatra Saurabh Kumar Tiwari

DIRECTOR  Chairman cum 
Managing 
Director 

DIN: 06748009 DIN: 03606497
CA. Anil Eashpuniyani
Partner
M NO : 096313
Place : New Delhi.
Date : 02-04-2018
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HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD  ENDED 31ST DECEMBER , 2017

Amount in INR
NOTE NO. Period ended Year ended

31.12.2017 31.03.2017

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

1. a) Revenue from Operations -                  -                   
b) Other Income 9                 289,246          588,125            

289,246          588,125            

2. Expenses
a) Finance Cost 10                375,000          500,000            
b) Other Admn. & Misc. Expenses 11                157,431          189,950            

532,431          689,950            

3. Profit / (Loss) Before Tax ( 1-2 ) (243,185)         (101,825)          
4. Tax Expenses

      Current Tax -            -                    
  Deferred Tax -            -                      -                    -                       

5. Profit/ (Loss) for the period (243,185)         (101,825)          

6. Earning Per Equity Share 12                
  1) Basic (4.86)               (2.04)                
  2) Diluted  (4.86)               (2.04)                

Significant Accounting Policies 1
   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Compiled from Books of Accounts Produced before us Hemisphere Properties India Limited

For AEPN & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 05842N Shiba P. Mohapatra Saurabh Kumar Tiwari

DIRECTOR  Chairman cum 
Managing 
Director 

CA. Anil Eashpuniyani
Partner DIN: 06748009 DIN: 03606497
M NO : 096313
Place : New Delhi.
Date : 02-04-2018

 Total 

Total 
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HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED

(Amount in INR)

AS AT AS AT
31.12.2017 31.03.2017

2       SHARE CAPITAL
Equity

Authorised Capital
2,50,000 (Pr. Yr. 2,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,500,000                2,500,000               

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid up
50,000 (Pr. Yr. 50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 500,000                   500,000                  

500,000                   500,000                  

a)

  

No.s Amt.(INR) No.s Amt.(INR)
EQUITY SHARES
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 50,000        500,000                   50,000       500,000                  
Add : Shares alloted during the year -             -                           -             -                          
Number of shares at the end of the year 50,000        500,000                   50,000       500,000                  

b)

c)

No.s Holding % No.s Holding %

Panatone Finvest Limited 24,440        48.88% 24,440       48.88%

25,560        51.12% 25,560       51.12%

3       RESERVE & SURPLUS
Statement of  Profit and Loss 
Balance as per Last Balance Sheet (495,615)                  (393,790)                 

Add: Profit/(Loss) for Current Year (243,185)                  (101,825)                 

(738,800)                  (495,615)                 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT  31ST DECEMBER , 2017

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AS AT MARCH 31, 2017

 The President of India (Through Department of 
Telecom.)  

The Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The paid up equity share of the company rank parri passu in all respects including
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding. 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
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HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED

(Amount in INR)

AS AT AS AT
31.12.2017 31.03.2017

4       NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Borrowings
Unsecured Loan from GOI 10,000,000              10,000,000             

10,000,000              10,000,000             

AS AT AS AT
5       OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 31.12.2017 31.03.2017

a)  Audit Fee Payable -                           23,000                    
b)  Security Deposit 600,000                   600,000                  

1,375,000                1,000,000               

d)  Legal Expenses Payable 10,000                     -                          
e)  Statutory Dues - (Tax Deducted at Source) 6,000                       -                          
f)  Other Expenses Payable 9,000                       -                          

                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
2,000,000                1,623,000               

6       CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Legal Expenses 5,550,000                3,900,000               

5,550,000                3,900,000               

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT  31ST DECEMBER , 2017

The Company has availed a loan amounting to Rs. 1 Crore from Govt. of India, to meet start-up costs that includes
day to day administrative and incidental expenditure for acquisition of land and the government has been requested
to provide soft loan on the following terms & conditions:-

 (Note: Legal Expenses incurred for due diligence of  regarding titles, land use of hiving of surplus land in favour of 
HPIL)  

(iii) Loan may be provided at nominal rate of simple interest @ 5%  p.a. 
(ii) There may not be any pre-payment penalty clause.

(i) Moratorium towards re-payment may be allowed for 5 years from the date of drawal of loan or finalization of
sale proceed of land, whichever is earlier. 

Note: The loan from Govt. of India has been received vide sanction memo dated 31st March 2015 of Department of 
Telecom, Ministry of Communication & IT, GOI, the terms and condition of the loan are as agreed by the Ministry 
of Finance. The intimation of such terms & conditions are pending to be recived from the Ministry of Finance.

 c)  Accrued Interset on Loan from GOI but yet not 
due 

Pending finalization of terms & conditions of the loan by the Government (Ministry of Finance), HPIL has given an
undertaking to the Government that the Company shall abide by the terms & conditions imposed by the Ministry of
Finance and accordingly provision of interest liabilities has been made in the accounts at nominal rate of simple
interest @ 5%  p.a.

Subsequent to the acquisition of 51.12% shares in HPIL, the Department of Telecommunications has provided loan
to the Company for appointing consulting firm having expertise in handling Company law matters, legal, land
revenue and taxation affairs. The consulting firm has to do due diligence regarding title, change of land use and all
other preparatory steps needed for finalization of the Scheme of Arrangement to enable hiving off of the Surplus
Land from M/s VSNL (now M/s TCL) to M/s HPIL. Apart from these, the Company has to pay Stamp Duty fee for
transfer of surplus land from M/s TCL to HPIL. Pending equity infusion and availability of adequate funds under
the appropriate Head of Account, expenditure incurred on stamp duty and payment towards legal consultant has
been classified under the head “Capital Work-in-Progress”.

(iv) The company may be allowed to repay the loan after a moratorium period of 5 years in 5 equal yearly
installments.
(v) Interest may be calculated on Half yearly basis.
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AS AT AS AT
7       a) Cash on hand 31.12.2017 31.03.2017

b)  Balances with Scheduled Banks
     On Short Term Deposit 5,736,713                7,424,739               
     On Current  Bank Account 86,328                     60,174                    

5,823,041                7,484,913               

8       SHORT TERM, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Accrued Interest on Short Term Deposits 98,627                     -                          
TDS Receivables 271,982                   242,472                  
GST Recoverable 9,000                       -                          
Suspense Account (Information not Provided to us) 8,550                       -                          

388,159                   242,472                  
(Amount in INR)

For Period Ending For Year Ending
12/31/2017 3/31/2017

9       INCOME FROM OTHER SOURCES
Interest Income 289,246                   588,125                  

289,246                   588,125                  

10     FINANCE COST
Interest on Loan from GOI 375,000                   500,000                  

375,000                   500,000                  

11     OTHER ADMN. & MISC. EXPENSES
Advertisement Expenses 4,090                       -                          
Auditors' Remuneration     -                           23,000                    
Legal & Professional Charges 125,750                   22,000                    
Misc. Expenses 139                          950                         
Printing & Stationery 18,960                     6,000                      
Salary, Perks & Retainership 992                          138,000                  
ROC Filing Fees ################# -
Digital Signature Charges ################# -

157,431                   189,950                  

12     Earning Per Share

Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per statement of Profit & Loss (243,185.00)             (101,825.00)            
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (243,185.00)             (101,825.00)            
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 50,000                     50,000                    
Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share in Rs. (4.86)                        (2.04)                       
Nominal Value of an Equity Share in Rs. 10.00                       10.00                      

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT  31ST DECEMBER , 2017

HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED
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A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net profit before tax and extraordinary items (243,185)          (101,825)             
Adjustment for
Finance Cost 375,000                    500,000          
Interest income (289,246)                  85,754              (588,125)         (88,125)               
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (157,431)          (189,950)             
Adjustment for :
Short Term Loans and Advances 126,295                    143,910          
Trade payables and other liabilities 377,000                    503,295            (1,669,650)      (1,525,740)          
Cash Generated From Operations 345,864            (1,715,690)          
Less: Direct taxes paid 271,982            -                           242,472               

Net Cash From Operating Activities (A) 73,882              (1,958,162)          

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES : -                          
Capital work-in-progress (1,650,000)       (1,800,000)          

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long Term Borrowings -                               -                      
Interest (Net ) (85,754)                    (85,754)            88,125            88,125                 

(85,754)            
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (1,661,872)       (3,670,037)          

Cash and Bank Balance  (Opening Balance) 7,484,913         11,154,950          

Cash and Bank Balance  (Closing Balance ) 5,823,041         7,484,913            

 Note : -                   

ii) The previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

Compiled from Books of Accounts Produced 
For AEPN & Associates
Chartered Acccountants
FRN: 05842N

Shiba P. Mohapatra Saurabh Kumar Tiwari

CA. Anil Eashpuniyani

Director  Chairman cum 
Managing 
Director 

Partner DIN: 06748009 DIN: 03606497
M NO : 096313
Place : New Delhi.
Date : 02-04-2018

Hemisphere Properties India Limited

HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD  ENDED 31ST DECEMBER , 2017

i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 on "Cash Flow 
Statement".

     Period  Ended 31/12/2017       Year Ended 31/03/2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2017

1)

a)

b)

c)

d)

1

2

3 Other items of income are recognised on accrual basis.

e)

f)

g)

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles) and requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. The
estimates and assumptions made and applied in preparing the financial statements are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions as on the date of financial statements. However,
due to uncertainties attached to the assumptions and estimates made, actual results could differ from those
estimated. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis of accounting.These statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act ) read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014
and the provision of the act to the extent notified. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to the
company unless otherwise stated.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of operations of
the Company, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/ non-
current classification of all assets and liabilities.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection:

Fixed Assets

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LTD.) 31.12.17

Corporate Information

Hemisphere Properties India Limited (the Company) is a public company incorporated on 17th January, 2005
and has become Government Company from 18th March, 2014. The incorporation of the Company was
pursuant to clause 7.10 of SPA and 4.7 of SHA executed on 13-02-2002 between Government of India and
M/s Panatone Finvest Ltd & other Tata Group of Companies wherein the surplus land identified at the time of
disinvestment of VSNL was to be demerged into the Company pursuant to a scheme of arrangement in terms
of the provisions of Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act. While 51.12% equity shares of the Company are
owned by the Government of India through Department of Telecommunications, remaining equity shares are
owned by M/s Panatone Finvest Limited.

Basis of Preparation

Use of Estimates

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction (net of duties and taxes that are
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) less accumulated depreciation . All costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of fixed asset are capitalised and include borrowing costs directly
attributable to construction or acquisition of qualifying tangible fixed assets.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to
the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations.
Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had
the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares
and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as
appropriate.

Interest income from parties and other claims/refunds are recognized when there is a reasonable certainty of
ultimate collection on the ground of prudence.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is charged on pro-rata basis on the Written down method over the
estimated useful lives of the assest as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation
on assets purchased / acquired during the year is charged from the date of addition/ purchase of the asset.
Similarly, depreciation on assets sold/ discarded during the year is charged up on the sale/ discard of the
assets. 

Depreciation

Earning Per Share
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HEMISPHERE PROPERTIES INDIA LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2017

h)

i)

j) CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

k) PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Compiled from Books of Accounts Produced 

For AEPN & Associates
Chartered Acccountants
FRN: 05842N

Shiba P. Mohapatra Saurabh Kumar Tiwari
CA. Anil Eashpuniyani Director  Chairman cum Managing Director 
Partner DIN: 06748009 DIN: 03606497
For AEPN & Associates
Place : New Delhi.
  FRN: 05842N

Date : 02-04-2018

Taxes on Income
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for their reliability.

Cash & Cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and on hand and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

(i) Provisions

Borrowing Costs

Hemisphere Properties India Ltd.

Borrowing costs include interest; amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in
connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and
utilized for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction/
development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalization of such asset is added to the cost of the
assets. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during
extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle  or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
(iii) Contingent Assets 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.
Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as at the
reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realize such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
timing differences of other items only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which these can be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if
such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally
enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for their
realisability.

A provisions is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, if it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
(ii) Contingent Liabilities
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BEFORE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
MUMBAI BENCH, MUMBAI

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 113 of 2018

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;

           And

In the matter of Application under Sections 230- 232 and other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

           And

In the matter of Tata Communications Limited [CIN: 
L64200MH1986PLC039266], a company incorporated under 
the Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office at VSB, 
Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001;

           And

In the matter of the Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction 
among Tata Communications Limited and Hemisphere Properties 
India Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors.

Tata Communications Limited [CIN: L64200MH1986PLC039266], 
a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having its 
registered office at VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai – 400001.

)
)
) .........Applicant Company

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Shareholder(s) : 

Registered address : 

E-mail Id : 

Folio No. / Client ID No. : DP ID No.

I / We, being the member(s) holding  Shares of Tata Communications Limited, hereby appoint

1. Name: E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature:
or failing him

2. Name: E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature:
or failing him

3. Name: E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Company 
Tata Communications Limited convened as per the directions of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench to be held on 
Thursday, May 10, 2018 at 11.00 a.m. Pama Thadhani Auditorium, Jai Hind College, ‘A’ Road, Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of the scheme of arrangement and reconstruction as detailed in the Notice and to vote, for me/us in my/our 
name(s)______________________ (here, if for, insert ‘FOR’ or if against, insert ‘AGAINST’) the arrangement embodied in the said Scheme as 
my/our proxy.

TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
CIN – L64200MH1986PLC039266 
Registered Office: VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. 
Tel: +91 22 6657 8765, Fax: +91 22 6657 1962,  
Email: manish.sansi@tatacommunications.com, Website: www.tatacommunications.com
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Signed this  day of  2018

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxyholder(s) 

NOTES:	

1.	 This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours 
before the commencement of the Meeting.

2.	 A person can act as proxy on behalf of shareholders not exceeding fifty and/or holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Applicant Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by shareholder(s) holding more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Applicant Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as proxy for any 
other person or shareholder.

3.	 All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialled.

4.	 Please affix Revenue Stamp before putting signature.

5.	 Proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

6.	 In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

Affix Rs. 1
Revenue
Stamp
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TATA COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
CIN – L64200MH1986PLC039266 
Registered Office: VSB, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. 
Tel: +91 22 6657 8765, Fax: +91 22 6657 1962,  
Email: manish.sansi@tatacommunications.com, Website: www.tatacommunications.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance)

Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Tata Communications Limited convened as per the directions of the National 
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench on May 10, 2018 (“Tribunal Convened Meeting”)

at Pama Thadhani Auditorium, Jai Hind College, ‘A’ Road, Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020

Folio No. ____________________________ DP ID No. ___________________________	Client ID No. _________________

Name of the Shareholder______________________________________ Signature ___________________________________

Name of the Proxyholder ______________________________________Signature___________________________________

I certify that I am a shareholder/ proxy of the member of the Company. I further declare that above particulars are true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge.

I hereby record my presence at the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Company, convened under the directions of the National Company 
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, vide order dated March 26, 2018, passed in Company Scheme Application No. 113 of 2018, held at 11:00 a.m. IST 
at Pama Thadhani Auditorium, Jai Hind College, ‘A’ Road, Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020 on Thursday, May 10, 2018.

IMPORTANT: 

1.	 Only Equity Shareholder, Proxyholder or Authorized Representatives can attend the Meeting. Equity Shareholder, proxy holder or the 
Authorized Representative attending this meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and hand over at the entrance duly filled 
and signed.

2.	 Equity Shareholders, Proxyholder or Authorized Representatives should bring their copy of the Notice for reference at the meeting.
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